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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

AM/ 8511 

To the Shareholders of 
Jordan Commercial Bank 
(Public Shareholding Company) 
Amman- Jordan 

Audit Scope 

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.) - Jordan 

Jabal Amman, 5th Circle 

190 Zahran Street 

P.O.Box 248 

Amman 11118, Jordan 

Tel : +962 (0) 6 5502200 

Fax : +962 (0) 6 550221 0 

www.deloitte.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jordan Commercial Bank 
(Public Shareholding Company), which comprise of the statement of financial 
position as of December 31, 2013, and the statements of income, comprehensive 
income, changes in owners' equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with the amended International Financial Reporting 
Standards as amended according to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan and 

its arrangements regarding the computation of the provision for impairment loss for 
number of credit facilities customers, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with the ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 



Deloitte. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
ln our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Jordan Commercial Bank (Public Shareholding Company) as of 
December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as amended 
according to the arrangements with the Central Bank of Jordan regarding the 
computation of the provision for the impairment loss for a number of credit facilities 
customers as stated in Note (6) to the financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to what is stated in Note (13) to the 
financial statements, the balance of deferred restructuring costs amounted to 
JD 5,177,555 as of December 31, 2013, which used to be amortized over ten years 
starting from the year 2004 based on the approved restructuring agreement by the 
Central Bank of Jordan and the Council of Ministers, and by the General Assembly of 
the Bank's Shareholders. The International Financial Reporting Standards require to 
charge the balance of deferred restructuring costs to the shareholders' equity; 
however, based on the arrangement with the Central Bank of Jordan, the amortization 
of restructuring costs balance for the years 2011, 2012 and 2013 was deferred, 
provided that the Bank will continue to amortize the balance effective the beginning 
of the year 2014. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
The Bank maintains proper accounting records that are in line with the accompanying 
financial statements and with the financial statements presented in the Board of 
Directors' annual report. Furthermore, we recommend that the General Assembly of 
Shareholders approves these financial statements taking into consideration the above 
mentioned emphasis of matter paragraph. 

The accompanying financial statements are a translation of the statutory financial 
statements in Arabic language to which reference should be made. 

Amman - Jordan otk!«� -totif::(;;;:;::Ordan
May 21, 2014 

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 
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JORDAN COMMERCIAL BANK 
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN - JORDAN 
STATEMENT OF FINANCJAL POSITION 

December 31, 

ASSETS 
Cash and balances at central banks 
Balances at banks and financial institutions 
Direct credit facilities - net 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income 
Financial assets at amortized cost 
Pledged financial assets 
Property and equipment - net 
Intangible assets - net 
Other assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 
LIABILITIES: 
Banks and financial institutions deposits 
Customers deposits 
Cash margins 
Borrowed funds 
Provision for income tax 
Other provisions 
Other liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITfES 

0 wn ers Efl1!i!y;_ 
Shareholders Equity: 
Authorized and paid-up capital 
Statutory reserve 
General banking risks reserve 
Cyclicality reserve 
Fair value reserve 
Retained earnings 

Total Shareholders Equity 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 

Note 2013 
JD 

4 123,785,204 
5 61,300,837 
6 5 l 7,278, l l3 
7 5,440,483 
8 9,638,731 
9 257,322,849 

10 
11 24,367,275 
12 722,991 
13 55,124,044 

l ,054,980,527

14 112,175,777 
15 743,003,938 
16 65,354,747 
17 2,000,000 
18/a 2,331,748 
19 800,252 
20 15,263,377 

940,929,839 

21 100,000,000 
22/a 8,449,542 
22/b 5,140,276 
22/c 897,196 
23 (3,851,899) 
24 3,415,573 

114,050,688 
1,054,980,527 

THE ACCOMPANYTNG NOTES FROM (1) TO (44) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL 
PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM 

AND WITH THE INDEPENDET AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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2012 
JD 

I 03,655,689 
68,368,860 

440,524,180 
3,111,976 
7,982,764 

149,298,558 
14,300,000 
20,975,994 
1,360,051 

34,764,958 
844,343,030 

38,850,452 
618,488,435 
57,290,028 
14,300,000 
1,381,748 

983,167 
9,577,232 

740,871,062 

93,342,179 
8,034,616 
4,198,663 

748,884 
(4,491,843) 
1,639,469 

103,471,968 
844,343,030 

� 



Interest income 

Less: Interest expense 

Net Interest Income 

Net Commission income 

Net Interest and Commission 

Foreign exchange income 

JORDAN COMMERCIAL BANK 

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN - JORDAN 

STATEMENT OF INCOME 

Gain ( loss) from financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

Cash dividends from financial assets at fair value through 

comprehensive income 

Other income 

Gross Income 

Employees expenses 

Depreciation and amortization 

Provision for impairment in direct credit facilities 

Other provisions 

Provision for impairment in financial assets at amortized cost 

Other expenses 

Total Expenses 

Income for the Year before Income Tax 

Less: Income tax for the year 

Income for the Year 

Earnings 12er Share for the Year attributable to the Bank's Shareholders 

Basic and Diluted 

Note 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

8 

30 

31 

11&12 

6 

19 

9 

32 

18/b 

33 

For the Year Ended 

December 3 I, 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

57,049,342 45,611,494 

(32,435,934) (22,747,378) 

24,613,408 22,864,116 

5,867,660 5,334,544 

30,481,068 28,198,660 

916,530 903,975 

54,940 (19,676) 

108,460 301,483 

4,005,216 2,167,282 

35,566,214 31,551,724 

9,737,020 8,415,924 

2,328,383 1,795,178 

10,365,470 9,960,273 

195,394 416,301 

226,880 

8,790,691 7,700,890 

31,416,958 28,515,446 

4,149,256 3,036,278 

(950,000) (973,400) 

3,199,256 2,062,878 

-/032 - /022

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (I) TO (44) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL 

PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM 

AND WITH THE INDEPENDET AUDITOR'S REPORT 

� CHAIR

P

RECTORS GENERAL MANAGER 
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JORDAN COMMERCIAL BANK 

(PUBL IC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN - JORDAN 

ST A TEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the Year Ended 

December 31, 

Income for the year 

Items that are not transferable subsequently to statement of income 

Net change in fair value reserve through statement of comprehensive income 

Total Comprehensive I ncome for the Year 

2013 

ID 

3,199,256 

_'721,643 

3,920,899 

THE ACCOMPANYING N OTES FROM (1) TO (44) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL 

PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM 

AND WlTH THE TNDEPENDET AUDITOR'S REPORT 

- 5 -

2012 

JD 

2,062,878 

(1,002,983) 

1,059,895 



Description 

For the Year Ended December 3 I 20 I 3 

Balance - beginning of the year 

I ncomc for year 

Ncl change in fair value of financial assets at fair \'alue through statement of 
comprehensive income 

Realized gains from sale of financial asse1s at fair value through 
comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Transferred to reserves 

Increase in paid - up capital 

Balance - End ofrhe Year 

For the Year Ended December 31 2012 

Balance - beginning of the year 

Income fo� year 

comprehensive income 

Released from sale of financial assets at fair value through statement of 
comprehensive income 

Realized gains from sale of financial assets at fair value through 
comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Transferred to reserves 

Increase in paid - up capital 

Balance - End of the Y car 

Nore 

22 

21 

22 

21 

JORDAN COMMERCIAL BANK 

{Pl.!i:!LIC SHAR!;t!OLDINQ (;QMPANY) 

AMMA� - JORDAN 

ST AT!;Mf;NT OF �HANQES IN OWl!f;RS' EOl.!(TY 

Shareholders' Egui!}'. 

Reserves 

Authorized General 

and Paid-up Banking Fair Value 

CaEital Sratutorv Risks C�clical Reserve 

JD JD JD JD JD 

93,342,179 8,034,616 4,198,663 748,884 (4,491,843) 

721,643 

(81,699) 

639,944 

414,926 941,613 148,312 

6,657,821 

I 00,000,000 8,449,542 5,140,276 897,196 (3,851,899) 

82,769,898 7,730,988 3,848,089 640,605 (4,373,535) 

(1,002,983) 

996,734 

(112,059) 

(118,308) 

303,628 350,574 108,279 

l0,572.281 
--

� � � 748,884 (4,491,843) 

Retained 

Eamin� Total 

JD JD 

1,639,469 103,471,968 

3,199,256 3,199,256 

721.643 

81,699 

3,280,955 3,920,899 

(1,504,851) 

6,657,821 

3,415,573 114,050,688 

1,223,747 91,839,792 

2,062,878 2,062,878 

(1,002,983) 

(996,734) 

112,059 

1,178,203 1,059,895 

(762,481) 

10,572,281 

1,639,469 103,471,968 

- Retained earnings include an amount of JD 1,974,218 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , restricted against the effect of early adoption of International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9) in accordance with 

Jordan Securi1ies Conunission instructions relating to unrealized differences in the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through statement of comprehensive income net of what has been actually realized 

1hrough selling transactions. 

An equivalent amount to the negative balance of financial assets revaluation reserve is restricted as per Jordan Securities Commission and Central Bank of Jordan instructions, 

- General Banking Risks Rescn,e balance is restricted except for pre-approval of the Central Bank of Jordan 

Use of the Cyclical Reserve is restricted except for pre�approval of the Palestinian Monetary Authority . 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (I) TO (44) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL 

PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM 

AND WITH THE INDEPENDET AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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JORDAN COMMERCIAL BANK 
{PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY) 

AMMAN - JORDAN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended 
December 3 I, 

Note 2013 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: JD 

Income for the year before income tax 4,149,256 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortization II & 12 2,328,383 
Provision for impairment in direct credit facilities 6 I 0,365,470 
Net interest income (1,332,832) 
Provision for end-of-service indemnity 19 104,991 
Provision for lawsuits against the Bank 19 90,403 
Other provisions 19 
(Gain) on sale of properties seized by the Bank 30 (940,706) 
(Gain) on sale of property and equipment 30 
Loss (gain) on valuation of financial assets through profit or loss 29 58,752 
Dividends distribution from financial assets at fair value through statement of comprehensive income (I 08,460) 
Impairment losses on shares acquired against debts 13 118,225 
Impairment loss of financial assets at amortized cost 9 
Effect of exchange rate nuctuations on cash and cash equivalents (625,527) 

Total 14,207,955 

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 
(Increase) in direct credit facilities (87, I 19,403) 
(Increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (2,387,259) 
(Increase) in other assets (18,833,026) 
(Decrease) in banks and financial institutions deposits due after three months 
Increase in customers deposits 124,5 I 5,503 
Increase in cash margins 8,064,719 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 5 686,145 

Net Change in Assets and Liabilities _ �2 6,679 

Net Cash Flows generated from (used in) Operating Activities before 

Provisions Paid and Income Tax Paid 44,134,634 
Staff end-of-service indemnity paid 19 (58,935) 
Provision for lawsuits paid 19 (210,079) 
Other paid provisions I transferred 19 (109,295) 
Income tax paid 18 

Net Cash Flows generated from (used in) Operating Activities 43,756,325 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
(Increase) in financial assets at amortized cost (162,504,291) 
Maturity of financial assets at amortized cost 54,480,000 
Decrease (increase) in pledged financial assets 14,300,000 

(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income (868,023) 
(Acquisition) of property and equipment II (4,966,971) 
(Acquisition) of intangible assets 12 (115,633) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
Proceeds from interests income 1,332,832 

Net Cash Flows (used in) generated from Investing Activities (98,342,086) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Increase in paid-up capital 21 6,657,821 

Net Cash Flows generated from Financing Activities 6,657,821 
Effect of exchange rate 0uctuations on cash and cash equivalents 28 625,527 

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (47,302,413) 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 117,811,453 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 34 70,509,040 

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES FROM (I) TO (44) CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL 
PART OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM 

AND WITH THE INDEPENDET AUDITOR'S REPORT 
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2012 
JD 

3,036,278 

1,795,178 
9,960,273 

(1,158,982) 
83,138 

328,163 
5,000 

(52,647) 
(7,821) 

(75,604) 
(301,483) 
114,382 
226,880 

(558, I 03) 
13,394,652 

(30, 178,55 I )  
(1,129,975) 

(I 1,809,788) 
( I 0,000,000) 

8,646,812 
18,124,386 
(5,278.512) 

(3 I ,625,628) 

(19,186,33 I) 
(44,000) 

(169,075) 
(24,622) 

(I 71,581) 
(19,595,609) 

(37,523,702) 
77,549,854 

(14,300,000) 
811,191 

(6,465,266) 
(658,781) 

32,984 
I, 158,982 

20,605,262 

10,572,281 
10,572,281 

558,103 
12,140,037 

105,671,416 
�1_!7,811,453 



1. General

JORDAN COMMERCIAL BANK 
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMP ANY) 

AMMAN - JORDAN 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Jordan Commercial Bank was established as a Jordanian Public Shareholding 
Company on May 3, 1977 in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law 
No. (12) for the year 1964 with a paid-up capital of JD 5 million divided into 5 
million shares at par value of one Jordanian Dinar per share. The Bank's Head 
Office address is Amman, Tel. +962 (6) 5203000, P.O. Box 9989, Amman 
11191 - Jordan. 

During the year 1993, Mashrek Bank (Jordan branches) was merged into Jordan 
and Gulf Bank. Consequently, Jordan and Gulf Bank replaced Mashrek Bank 
(Jordan branches) in terms of its rights and liabilities. 

At the beginning of the year 2004, the Bank was restructured after taking the 
necessary measures specified by the concerned governmental parties and on 
June 28, 2004, procedures relating to changing the Bank's name from Gulf Bank 
to Jordan Commercial Bank were completed. 

The Bank's capital was increased gradually, with the last increase paid during 
the years 2012, and 2013 whereby the General Assembly of the Bank resolved 
in its extraordinary meeting held on December 20, 2011 to approve the increase 
of the authorized, issued and paid-up capital from JD/Share 82,769,898 as of 
December 31, 2011 to become JD/Share 100,000,000, with an increase of 
JD/Share 17,230,102, through issuing 17,230,102 shares for private 
underwriting of One JD per each share for the Bank's registered shareholders. 
The underwriting procedures have been completed for JD/Share 10,572,281 of 
the original amount of 17,230,102 shares in the amount of One JD per each 
share, as the issued and paid-up capital became JD/Share 93,342,179 as of 
December 31, 2012. Moreover, the sale of the unsubscribed shares amounting to 
6,657,821 share was completed during the year 2013 by which the Bank's 
capital became JD 100,000,000 JD/Share fully paid as of January 31, 2013. 

Jordan Commercial Bank is a listed Public Shareholding Company on Amman 
Stock Exchange. 

The Bank is engaged in banking and related financial operations through its 
branches totaling to (30) inside Jordan, and (4) branches in Palestine. 

The financial statements have been approved by the Bank's Board of Directors, 
in its meeting No. (31/2014) held on February 23, 2014 and are subject to the 
approval of the General Assembly of Shareholders. 

- 8 -



2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements of the Bank has been prepared in 
accordance with amended International Financial Repotiing Standards according 
to Central Bank of Jordan instructions and arrangement with regards to the 
computation of the provision for impairment loss for a number of direct credit 
facilities customers and amortization of restructuring costs balance. 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
principle, except for financial assets / liabilities which are stated at fair value 
through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income and financial derivatives which stated at fair value at the date of the 
financial statements. Moreover, hedged financial assets / liabilities are also 
stated at fair value. 

The reporting currency of the financial statements is the Jordanian Dinar, which 
is the functional currency of the Bank. 

The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those 
applied in the year ended December 31, 2012 except the effect of what is stated 
Note ( 44-a) to the financial statements. 

Segments Information 

A business segment is a distinguishable component of an entity engaged in 
providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or 
services subject to risks and returns different from those of other business 
segments, which are measured according to the reports used by executive 
directors and the main decision makers at the Bank. 

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an entity engaged in 
providing products or services within a particular economic environment subject 
to risks and returns different from those of components operating in other 
economic environments. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
These financial assets represent investments in companies' stocks and bonds, 
and the purpose from maintaining them is generating gains from the fluctuations 
in market prices in the short term or trading margins. 

These financial assets are initially stated at fair value at acquisition date, while 
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of income, and are subsequently 
measured at fair value. Moreover, changes in fair value are recorded in the 
statement of income including the change in fair value resulting from translation 
of non-monetary assets stated at foreign currency. Gains or losses resulting from 
the sale of these financial assets are taken to the statement of income. 

- 9 -



It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets to / from this category except 
for the cases specified in International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Dividends and interests from these financial assets are recorded in the 
statement of income. 

Financial assets at fair value through statement of comprehensive income 

These financial assets represent investments in equity instruments held for the 
purpose of generating gain on a long term and not for trading purpose. 

Financial assets at fair value though comprehensive income initially stated at 
fair value plus transaction cost at purchase date. Subsequently, they are 
measured at fair value with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value 
recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income and within owner's 
equity, including the changes in fair value resulting from translation of 
non-monetary assets stated at foreign currency. Gain or loss from the sale of 
these investments should be recognized in the statement of comprehensive 

income and within owner's equity, and the balance of the revaluation reserve for 
these assets should be transferred directly to the retained earnings and not to the 
statement of income. 

No impairment loss testing is required for those assets. 

Dividends are recorded in the statement of income in a separate line item. 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

These financial assets represent financial assets which the Bank's management 
intends according to its business model to hold for the purpose of collecting 
contractual cash flows which comprise the contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. 

Those financial assets are stated at cost upon purchase plus acquisition expenses. 
Moreover, the issue premium / discount is amortized using the effective interest 
rate method, and recorded to the interest account. Provisions associated with the 
decline in value of these investments leading to the inability to recover the 
investment or part therefore are deducted. Any impairment is registered in the 
statement of income. 

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the 
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets from / to this category except for 
certain cases specified in the International Financial Reporting Standards (in the 
case of selling any of these assets before its maturity date, the result should be 
recorded in a separate line item in the statement of income, disclosures should be 
made in accordance to the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards). 

- 10 -



Fair Value 
Fair value represents the closing market price (Assets Purchasing / Liabilities Selling) 
of financial assets and derivatives on the date of financial statements in active markets 
that represents the fair value of financial instruments and derivatives that have market 
values. 

In case declared market prices do not exist, active trading of some financial assets and 
derivatives is not available, or the market is inactive, fair value is estimated by one of 
several methods including the following: 

Comparison with the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and 
conditions. 

Analysis of the present value of expected future cash flows for similar 
instruments. 

Option pricing models. 

Long term assets. and liabilities that bear no interest are evaluated in accordance 
with the discounted cash flows using effective interest rate. Premiums and 
discounts are amortized within interest revenues or expense in the statement of 
income. 

The valuation methods aim to obtain a fair value that reflects the market expectations, 
taking into consideration market factors and any expected risks and benefits upon 
estimating the value of financial assets. Moreover financial assets at fair value of 
which cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost net of any impairment in their 
value. 

Impairment in the Value of Financial Assets 
The Bank reviews the values of financial assets on the date of the statement of 
financial position in order to determine if there are any indications of impairment in 
their value individually or in the form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the 
recoverable value is estimated so as to determine the impairment loss. 

Impairment loss is determined as follows: 

Impairment in financial assets recorded at amortized cost is determined on the 
basis of the present value of the expected cash flows discounted at the original 
interest rate. 

- The impairment in value is recorded in the statement of income. Any surplus in
the following period resulting from previous declines in the fair value of financial
assets is taken to the statement of income.

Direct Credit Facilities 
Direct Credit facilities are financial assets with fixed or amended payments and 
basically provided by the Bank or obtained with no available market value in an 
active markets. 

Direct Credit facilities are stated at amortized cost after deducting provision for 
impairment loss in direct credit facilities, interests and commissions in suspense. 
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- A provision for the impairment in direct credit facilities is recognized when it is
obvious that the financial assets of the Bank cannot be recovered, there is an
objective evidence of the existence of an event negatively affecting the future cash
flows of the direct credit facilities, and the impairment loss amount can be
estimated according to Central Bank of Jordan instructions, except for the
arrangements with the Central Bank of Jordan with regards to the calculation of
impairment and interest in suspense for a number of direct credit facilities
customers, and in accordance with the Central Banks instruction in which the
Bank's branches operate. Impairment loss is taken to the statement of income. The
provision is taken to the statement of income.

Interests and commissions on non-performing direct credit facilities are suspended 
in accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan or the applicable 
laws in the countries where the bank's branches operate whichever is more 
restricted. 

Impaired credit facilities, for which provision have been taken, are written off by 
charging the provision after all efforts that have been made to recover the assets. 
Any surplus in the provision is taken to the statement of income, while prior debt 
recoveries are taken to income. 

Credit facilities and the related suspended interests that are fully covered by 
provisions are taken off the statement of financial position in line with board of 
directors decisions with regards. 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment in its value. Moreover, property and equipment (except for land) are 
depreciated according to the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, 
when ready for use, using the following annual rates: 

Buildings 
Machines and office equipment 
Decorations 
Vehicles 
Computers 

% 

2 
10-15

15
15
20

When the carrying amounts of property and equipment exceed their recoverable 
values, assets are written down, and impairment losses are recorded in the 
statement of income. 

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year. 
In case the expected useful life is different from what was determined before, the 
change in estimate is recorded in the following years, being a change in estimates. 

Property and equipment are derecognized when disposed of or when there is no 
expected future benefit from their use. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Bank has an obligation on the date of the 
statement of financial position arising from past events, and the costs to settle the 
obligation are both probable and can be reliably measured. 
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Provision for Employees' End-of-Service Indemnities 
The employees' end-of-service indemnities provision is estimated on the basis of 
one-month salary for each year of service less the Bank's contribution for Social 
Security Department. 

Payments to departing employees are deducted from the employees' end-of­
service indemnities provision while the required provision for end-of-service 
indemnities for the year is recorded in the statement of income. 

Income Tax 
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes. 

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Moreover, 
income subject to tax differs from income declared in the financial statements 
because the latter includes non-taxable revenue or tax expenses not deductible in 
the current year but deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable 
by the tax authorities, and items not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax. 

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed according to the 
prevailing laws, regulations, and instructions of the countries where the Bank 
operates. 

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary 
timing differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the value of the taxable amount. Defened tax is calculated on the 
basis of the liability method in the statement of financial position according to the 
rates expected to be applied when the tax liability is settled or tax assets are 
recognized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed as of the date of the financial 
statements, and reduced in case it is expected that no benefit will arise therefrom, 
partially or totally. 

Capital share 
Costs of Issuing or Purchasing the Bank's Shares 
Costs of issuing or purchasing the Bank's shares are recorded in retained earnings (net 
of the tax effect of these costs). In case the issue or purchase process is incomplete, 
these costs are charged to the statement of income as an expense. 

Pledged Financial Assets 
These assets which are mortgaged for other parties with the right of (selling or 
remortgaging) . These assets are continuously assessments according to accounting 
polices used to evaluate each one as it's originally rated. 

Custody Accounts 
This item represents the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers and 
is not part of the Bank's assets. The fees and commissions for managing these 
accounts are shown in the statement of income. Furthermore, a provision is taken 
against the decline in the value of capital-guaranteed po11folios managed on behalf of 
customers. 
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Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected in 
the statement of financial position only when there are legal rights to offset the 
recognized amounts, the Bank intends to settle them on a net basis, or assets are 
realized and liabilities settled simultaneously. 

Recognition of Income and Realization of Expenses 
Interest income is realized and recognized based on the effective interest method, 
except for interest and commission on non-performing facilities which are not 
recognized as revenue but taken to the interest and commission in suspense 
account. 

Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis. 

Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are rendered, and 
dividend revenue from companies is recognized when earned ( or when approved 
by the Shareholders General Assembly). 

Recognition of Financial Assets Date 
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on the trade date (the date the 
Bank is liable to sell or purchase the financial asset). 

Financial Derivatives and Hedge Accounting 
Financial Derivatives Hedge 
For hedge accounting purposes, the financial derivatives are stated at fair value, and 
hedges are classified as follows: 

Fair value hedge 
Hedge for the change in the fair value exposures of the Bank's assets and 
liabilities. 

When the conditions of effective fair value hedge are met, the resulting gain or 
loss from re-measuring. the fair value hedge is recognized in the statement of 
income. 

When the conditions of effective portfolio hedge are met, the gain or loss resulting 
from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value as well as the change 
in the fair value of the assets or liabilities portfolio are recorded in the income 
statement for the same period. 

Cash flows hedge 
Hedge for the change in the cmTent and expected cash flows exposures of the 
Bank's assets and liabilities. 

When the conditions of effective cash flow hedge are met, the gain or loss of the 
hedging instruments is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income / 
owners' equity. Such gain or loss is transferred to the statement of income in the 
period in which the hedge transaction impacts the statement of income. 
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Hedge for net investment in foreign entities 
When the conditions of the hedge for net investment in foreign entities are met, 
fair value is measured for the hedging instrument of the hedged net assets. In case 
of an effective relationship, the effective portion of the loss or profit related to the 
hedging instrument is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income / 
statement of owners' equity while the ineffective portion is recognized in the 
statement of income. Moreover, the effective portion is recorded in the statement 
of income when the investment in foreign entities is sold. 

When the conditions of the effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss resulting 
from the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the 
statement of income in the same period. 

Financial Derivatives for Trading 
The fair value of financial derivatives for trading such as forward foreign currency 
contracts, future interest rate contracts, swap agreements, and foreign currency 
options is recorded in the statement of financial position under other assets or other 
liabilities as the case may be. Fair value is measured according to the prevailing 
market prices, and if they are not available, the measurement method should be 
disclosed. The change in their fair value is recognized in the statement of income. 

Repurchase or Resale Agreements 
Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase them at a future date 
continue to be recognized in the financial statements as a result of the Bank's 
continuous control over these assets and as the related risks and benefits are 

transferred to the Bank upon occurrence. They also continue to be measured in 
accordance with the adopted accounting policies. Amounts received against these 
contracts are recorded within liabilities under borrowed funds. The difference 

between the sale price and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest 
expense amortized over the contract period using the effective interest rate 
method. 

Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date 
are not recognized in the financial statements because the Bank has no control 
over such assets and the related risks and benefits are not transfeITed to the Bank 
upon occurrence. Payments related to these contracts are recorded under deposits 

with banks and other financial institutions or loans and advances in accordance 
with the nature of each case. The difference between the purchase price and resale 
price is recorded as interest revenue amortized over the life of the contract using 
the effective interest method. 

Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets purchased in an acquisition are stated at fair value at the date of 
acquisition. Other intangible assets purchased other than through acquisition are 
recorded at cost. 
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Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite 
useful life. Intangible assets with definite useful economic lives are amortized 
over their useful lives and recorded as an expense in the statement of income. 
Intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment as of the 
financial statements date, and impairment loss is treated in the statement of 
income as an expense for the period. 

No capitalization of intangible assets resulting from the Banks' operations is 
made. They are rather recorded as an expense in the statement of income for the 
period. 

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the financial 
statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the 
impaired intangible assets are reassessed, and any adjustment is made in the 
subsequent period. 

Computers software and applications are amortized according to the straight-line 
method over their estimated economic useful lives at an annual amortization rate 
of20%. 

Assets Seized by the Bank 
Assets seized by the Bank are shown under "other assets" in the statement of 
financial position at the acquisition value or fair value, whichever is lower and 
revalued individually at fair value as of the statement of financial position date. Any 
decline in their market value is taken to the statement of income whereas any such 
increase is not recognized. A subsequent increase is taken to the statement of income 
to the extent that it does not exceed the previously recorded impairment loss. 

Foreign Currencies 
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange 
rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the average exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financial 
position date and declared by the Central Bank of Jordan. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and 
recorded at fair value are translated on the date when their fair value is 
determined. 

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in the 
statement of income. 

Translation differences for non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies (such as shares) are recorded as part of the change in fair 
value. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents are balances, maturing within three months, which 
comprise of cash and balances with Central Banks, balances with banks and financial 
institutions, less bank deposits and balances due to banks and financial institutions 
maturing within three months and restricted funds. 
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3. Accounting Estimates
Preparation of the accompanying financial statements and the application of 
accounting policies require the Bank's management to estimate and assess some items 
affecting financial assets and liabilities and to disclose contingent liabilities. These 
estimates and assumptions also affect income, expenses, provisions, and financial 
assets valuation and require the Bank's management to estimate and assess the 
amounts and timing of future cash flows. The aforementioned estimates are based on 
several assumptions and factors with varying degrees of consideration and 
uncertainty. Furthermore, the actual results may differ from the estimates due to the 
changes arising from the conditions and circumstances of those estimates. 

Management believes that the estimates in the financial statements are reasonable and 
are detailed herebelow: 

A provision is set for lawsuits raised against the Bank. This provision is subject to 
an adequate legal study prepared by the Bank's legal advisor. Moreover, the study 
highlights potential risks that the Bank may encounter in the future. Such legal 
assessments are reviewed frequently. 

A provision for loans is taken on the basis and estimates approved by management 
in conformity with Central Bank of Jordan instructions except for the 
arrangements with Central Bank of Jordan with regards to impairment loss for 
some direct credit facilities customers. 

Impairment loss for the assets seized by the Bank is taken after a sufficient and 
recent evaluation of the acquired assets has been conducted by approved 
surveyors. The impairment loss is reviewed periodically. 

Management periodically reassesses the economic useful lives of tangible and 
intangible assets for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and 
amortization based on the general status of these assets and the assessment of their 
useful economic lives expected in the future. Impairment loss is taken to the 
statement of income. 

Management frequently reviews the financial assets stated at cost to estimate any 
decline in their value. Impairment loss is taken to the statement of income. 

Provision for income tax: The financial year is charged with its portion from the 
income tax expense according to the prevailing laws and regulations and 
International Financial Reporting Standards. Moreover, the necessary income tax 
provision is calculated and recorded. 

Fair value hierarchy: The Bank is required to determine and disclose the level in 
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorized in 
their entirety, segregating fair value measurements in accordance with the levels 
defined in International Financial Reporting Standards. Differentiating between 
Level (2) and Level (3) fair value measurements, i.e., assessing whether inputs are 
observable and whether the unobservable inputs are significant, may require 
judgment and careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including 
consideration of factors specific to the asset or liability. When evaluating the fair 
value of the financial asset or liability, the Bank uses information from the market 
if available and in absence of the first level inputs, the Bank deals with the 
independent and qualified parties to prepare evaluation studies. Appropriate 
methods of assessment and inputs used to prepare the evaluation are reviewed by 
management. 
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4. Cash and Balances at Central Banks

The details of this item are as follows: 

Cash in vaults 

Balances at Central Banks: 

Current and call accounts 

Time and notice deposits 

Mandatory cash reserve 

Total Balances at Central Banks 

December 3 I , 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

17,298,488 20,461,371 

25,471,499 44,724,261 

45,444,500 7,444,500 

35,570,717 31,025,557 

106,486,716 83,194,318 

123,785,204 I 03,655,689 

- There are no restricted balances as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, except for the cash reserve and the capital deposits at the

Palestinian Monetary authority which amounted to JD 7,444,500.

- There are no balances maturing within a period of more than three months as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

5. Balances at Banks and Financial Institution's

The details of this item are as follows: 

Local Banks and 
Financial Institutions 

Foreign Banks and 
Financial Institutions Total 

December 3 I , December 3 I , December 31, 

Current and call accounts 

Deposits due within 3 months or less 

Total 

2013 

JD 

2,109,110 

48,987,111 

51,096,221 

2012 

JD 

3,908,232 

31,516,329 

35,424,561 

2013 

JD 

3,355,147 

6,849,469 

10,204,616 

2012 2013 

JD JD 

5,328,285 5,464,257 

27,616,014 55,836,580 

32,944,299 61,300,837 

Non-interest bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD 2, I 09, 110 as of December 31, 2013 

(JD 3,908,232 as of December 31, 2012). 

- Restricted balances amounted to JD 401,224 as ofDeccmber 31, 2013 (JD 1,062,644 as of December 31, 2012).

- There are no balances maturing within a period of more than three months as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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2012 

JD 

9,236,517 

59,132,343 

68,368,860 



6. Direct Credit Facilities - net

The details of this item are as follows: 

Individuals (retail): 

Overdraft accounts 

Loans and promissory notes * 

Credit cards 

Real estate loans 

Companies: 

Large: 

Overdraft accounts 

Loans and promissory notes * 

SMEs 

Overdraft accounts 

Loans and promissory notes * 

Government and public sector 

Total 

Less: Provision for impairment in direct credit facilities 

Interest in suspense 

Net Direct Credit Facilities 

December 3 I, 

2013 

JD 

2,638,030 

99,109,012 

3,658,168 

78,738,370 

76,213,354 

211,074,632 

22,462,579 

68,755,740 

16,139,632 

578,789,517 

(42,774,498) 

(18,736,906) 

517,278, 113 

2012 

JD 

2,443,467 

54,768,585 

2,179,444 

79,499,187 

55,190,397 

198,150,559 

23,416,756 

56,168,720 

19,069,471 

490,886,586 

(36,336,461) 

(14,025,945) 

440,524, I 80 

* Net after deducting interests and commissions received in advance of JD 589,960 as of December 31, 2013

(JD 639,151 as of December 31, 2012).

- Non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 80,053,791 equivalent to 13/8% of total direct credit facilities as

of December 31, 20 I 3 (JD 84,974,667 equivalent to 17/3% of total direct credit facilities as of December 31, 2012).

Non- performing credit facilities net of interests and commissions in suspense amounted to JD 62,893,274 equivalent 

to I l/2%oftotal direct credit facilities balance as of December 31, 2013 (JD 70,948,722 equivalent to 14/9% of total 

credit facilities balance after deducting suspended interests as of December 31, 2012). 

- There are no direct credit facilities granted to and guaranteed by the Government of .Jordan for the years 2013 and 2012. 

Direct credit facilities include facilities granted to a number of customers in an amount of JD 25,284,787 net after deducting 

interests and commissions in suspense as of December 31, 2013, with acceptable collaterals amounting to JD 15,727,203 as 

per Central Bank of Jordan instructions. The provision for impairment loss against such direct credit facilities amounted to 

JD 19,556,900 as of December 31, 2013 based on the arrangements with Central Bank of Jordan with regards to the computation 

of provision for impairment loss for these customers, whereby the remaining provision will be gradually booked starting the year 

20 I 2 and during one to three years. 
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Prgviliion for Impairm�nt in Dir�!;t Credit Fa�iliti�� 

The following is the movement on the provision for impairmenl in direct credit facilities for the year; 

Com2anies 

Real Est.tie Small and Go\'crnmcnt and 

Year 2013 Individuals Loans Large Medium Public Sector Total 

JD JD JD JD JD JD 

Balance - beginning of the year 1,073,172 4,065,980 26,375,066 4,822,243 36,336,461 

Deducted from income during 1he year 1,522,833 681,814 7,412,059 748,764 10,365,470 

Used from provision during the year (wriuen-ofl)"' (67,343) (1,825,438) (1,892,781) 

Provision for debts transferred 10 accounts off the statement of 
financial position u (585,196) (125,790) (954,412) (574,73 I )  (2,240,129) 

Transferred from credit cards losses - note (19) 205,477 205,477 
Balance- End of the Year 2,148,943 4,622,004 31,007,275 4,996,276 42,774,498 

Provision for impairment in non-performing credit facilities 2,000,889 4,622,004 30,253,787 4,894,616 41,771,296 
Provision for impairment in watch list credit facilities 148,054 753,488 101,660 I 003,202 

Balance - End of the Year 2,148,943 4,622,004 Jl,00� 4,996,276 42,774,498 

Com2anies 

Real Estate Small and Govenunem 3nd 

fuuQl1 Individuals Loans Laq;e Medium Public Sector Total 

JD JD JD JD JD JD 

2,408,817 626,095 22,641,590 4,329,362 30,005,864 

Deducted from income during the year 452,362 3,439,885 5,558,347 509,619 9,960,273 

Used from provision during the year (writtcn•off)'" (174,451) (144,863) (319,314) 

Provision for debts transferred to accourus off the statement of 
financial position •• (1,613,556) (1,680,008) (16,798) (3,310,362) 

Balance- End of the Year 1,073,172 4,065,980 26,375,066 4,822,243 �461 

Provision for impairment in non•performing credit facilities 1,018,605 4,065,980 25,675,923 4,738,571 35,499,079 

Provision for impairment in watch lis1 credit facilities 54,567 699,143 83,672 837,382 
Balance-End of the Year 1,073 172 4,065,980 26,375,066 4,822 243 __ 36,336,461 

• During 1he year 2013, an amount of ID 1,892,781 was written-off from direct credit facilities according to the Board of Directors approval (with regards 

JD 319,314 for the year 2012). 

•• Non-performing credit facilities debits was transferred 10 the off-balance sheet items during 2013 aJ1d 2012 according to the decisions of the Doard of Directors 

with regards 

- ll1e provisions againsl debts calculated on the basis of the individual customer has been disclosed above 

• Provisions no longer needed due to settlements or repayments of deb1s transferred agains1 other debts amounted 10 JD 3.835.170 as of 

December 31, 2013 (JO 2.521,715 as of December 3 I, 2012). 

• A balance of direct credit facilities of JD 37,604,283 and imerest in suspense of JD 20,317.216 and related provision against it of JD 17,287,067 as of 

December 31, 2013, were included within accoums off the statement of financial position items according to the Board of Directors resolutions, whereby 

these accounts are fully covered as of the financial statements date. 

Interests in Suspense 

The movement on interest in suspense during the year was as follows: 

Year2013 

Balance - beginning of the year 

Add: Interest suspended during the year 

Lw: Interest reversed 10 income during the year (note 30) 

lnlerest in suspense wrinen off 
Interest in suspense transferred to accounts off 1he 
stalement of financial position 

Balance· End of the Year 

Year 2012 

Balance-beginning of the year 

Add: Interest suspended during the year 

l&ll: Interest reversed to income during the year (note 30) 

ln1eres1 in suspense wrinen off 
Interest in suspense transferred to accoun1s off th� 
statement of financial position 

Balance· End of die Year 

Real Estate 

Individuals �s 

JD JD 

369,065 1,166,752 

597,651 279,899 

(85,412) (34,861) 

(183,511) 

(194,782) (134,104) 
503,01 I 1,277,686 

Real Es1a1e 

Individuals Loans 

JD JD 

552,710 733,430 

190.)92 433,322 

(164,712) 
(125,318) 

(84,007) 

)69,065 1,166,752 

• 20 

Companies 

Small and Govcnm1ent and 

� Medium Public Sector � 
JD JD JD ID 

9,355,909 3,134,219 14,025,945 

6,728,739 530,780 8,137,069 

(671,731) (96,305) (888,309) 
(1,398,969) (20,578) (1,603,058) 

ill1.!!2l. (92,738) (934,741) 
I 3,500,831 3,455,378 18,736,906 

Companies 

Small and Government and 

Large Medium Public Sector Total 

JD ID JD JD 

5,942,414 2,724,866 9,953,420 

5,036,763 590,195 6,250,672 

(128,366) (81,303) (374,381) 
(190,084) (59,273) (374,675) 

(1.304,818) (40,266) (1,429,091) 
9,355,909 3,134,219 14,025,945 



7. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows:

December 31, 

Quoted shares in active markets 

Total 

8. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Comprehensive Income

The details of this item are as follows:

2013 

JD 

5
,_
440,483 

5,440,483 

2012 

JD 

3,111,976 

3,111,976 

December 3 I, 

Quoted shares in active markets 

Unquoted shares in active markets * 

Total 

2013 

JD 

7,476,720 

2,162,011 

9,638,731 

- Realized gains from the sale of shares at fair value through statement of comprehensive income

amounted to JD 81,699 for the year ended December 31, 2013 were directly recorded in the retained

earnings in owners' equity (JD I 12,059 for the year ended December 31, 2012).

2012 

JD 

5,976,900 

2,005,864 

7,982,764 

- Cash dividends for the above investments amounted to JD I 08,460 for the year ended December 31, 2013

(JD 301,483 for the year ended December 31, 2012).

* This item represents unlisted financial assets and are valued at book value as of December 2013 and 2012.
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9. Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The details of this item are as follows: 

Treasury bond and bills - Central Bank of Jordan 

Companies bonds and debentures 

Total 

less: Provision for impairment in financial assets at 

amortized cost *

Interest in suspense **

Financial assets at amortized cost - Net 

Bonds and Bills Analysis: 

Fixed rate 

Total 

December 31, 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

229,761,205 116,261,378 

27,903,012 33,355,552 

257,664,217 149,616,930 

(283,600) (283,600) 

(57,768) (34,772) 

257,322,849 149,298,�58 

257,322,849 149,298,558 

257,322,849 149,298,558 

* The movement on the provision of impairment in financial assets at amortized cost during the year is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year 

Provision booked for the year 

Balance - Ending of the Year 

** The movement for the interests in suspense during the year is as follows: 

Balance - beginning of the year 

Interest in suspense during the year 

Balance - Ending of the Year 

10. Pledged Financial Assets

2013 

JD 

283,600 

283,600 

2013 

JD 

34,772 

22,996 

57,768 

2012 

JD 

56,720 

226,880 

283,600 

2012 

JD 

17,495 

17,277 

34,772 

This item represents Jordanian treasury bills and bonds in the amount ofJD 14,300,000 as of December 31, 

2012 against repurchasing agreement liabilities, which were executed on December 26, 2012 with an interest 

rate of 4/25%, and maturity date on January 2, 2013, and was not renewed. 
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l I. Property and Equipment - Net 

a. The details of this item are as follows: 

Machines Payments for 

and Office Property and 

Year2013 Lands Buildin� Eguiement Decorations Vehicles Comeutcrs �ment 

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Cost: 

Balance - beginning of the year 1,896,400 13,130,467 5,271,995 5,662,869 476,112 5,764,252 

Additions 690,851 1,092,668 734,308 989,414 48,000 702,136 
Transfers from the payments to intangible 

assets (note 12) 481,862 

Payments for property and equipment 709,594 

Balance - End of the Year 2,587,251 14,223,135 6,488,165 6,652,283 524, l 12 6,466,388 709,594 

Accunwlme.d Depreciation: 

Balance - beginning of the year 648,086 2,757,041 3,325,2 IO 224,984 4,270,780 

Deprecation for the year 279,015 593,649 670,052 74,717 440,119 

Balance - End of the Year 927,101 3,350,690 3,995,262 299,701 4,710,899 

Net Book Value of Property and Equipment 2,587,251 I 3,296,034 3,137,475 2,657,021 224,411 1,755,489 709,594 

Ycar2012 

� 

Balance - beginning of the year 1,896,400 3,947,665 4,223,195 5,069,136 517,375 4,457,060 5,765,935 

AUditio11s 

Transfers from !he payments for 
780,784 760,318 434,115 25,000 508, I 16 3,956,933 

prope1ty and equipment 8,402,018 352,260 160,230 808,360 (9,722,868) 

Disposals (63,778) (612) (66,263) (9,284) 

Balance - End of the Y car 1,896,400 13,130,467 5,271,995 5,662,869 476,112 5,764,252 

Accumulated Dcpreci_at_!.Q_(J: 

Balance - beginning of the year 529,414 2,405,805 2,699,275 208,843 4,04 I, 171 

Deprecation for the year 118,672 403,726 626,545 68,545 238,879 

Disposals (52,490) (610) (52,404) (9,270) 

Balance- End of the Year 648,086 2,757,04 I 3,325,2 IO 224,984 4,270,780 

Net Book Value of Propc,ty and Equipment 1,896,400 12,482,381 2,514,954 2,337,659 251,128 1,493,472 

Annual depreciation percentage% 2 IO· 15 15 15 20 

b • Prope11y and equipment balance includes an amount of JD 7,803,041 as of December 31, 20 13 (JD 6,170,090 as of December 31, 20 I 2), representing fully depreciated 

propc11y and equipment. 
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Total 

JD 

32,202,095 

4,257,377 

481,862 

____1Q2,_594 

�928 

11,226, IO I 

---2.Q3552 

13,283,653 

24,367,275 

25,876,766 

6,465,266 

(139,937) 

�095 

9,884,508 

1,456,367 

(114,774) 

�IOI 

�994 



12. Intangible Assets - Net 
The details of this item are as follows: 

Balance-beginning of the year 
Additions during the year 
Amortization for the year 
Transferred to properly and equipment (Note 11) • 

Balance-End of the Year 

Annual amortization percentage% 

Computers and software systems 
2013 2012 
JD JD 
1,360,05 I 1,040,08 I 

115,633 658,781 
(270,831) (338,811) 
(48 I ,8622 

-==7
;,;;
2
;;;,
2,;;.99�1� I ,360,051 

20 20 

• This item represents assets which have been re-classified to the property and equipment during 2013, whereby its not 
listed as an intangible asset. 

13. Other Assets 
The details of this item are as follows: 

Accrued interests and revenue 
Prepaid expenses 
Exchange currencies/ Central Bank of Jordan 
Assets seized by the Bank against debts - net • 
Restructuring balance • • 

Payments for financial assets and properties*** 

Refundable deposits 

Transactions under process between branches 

Others 

December 31, 
� 

JD 
5,090,983 

462,043 

37,972,231 
5,177,555 

1,734,997 

1,156,940 

1,869,993 

1,659,302 

55_,__1_2_4,044 

2012 
JD 

2,687,659 
446,790 
487,006 

22,450,710 
5,177,555 

252,500 

1,645,138 

507,843 

I, I 09,757 

34,764,958 

• This item includes land and seized properties sold on installments with a cost amounted to JD 6,161,100 as of December 31, 2013 against
a received amount of JD 1,666,118 included in other liabilities (JD 1,323,217 as of December 31, 2012 against received amount
of JD 658,523) 

- The movement on assets seized by the Bank against debts during the year is as_ follows : 

Balance - beginning of the year (Gross before the impairment 
loss) 
Less: beginning balance for impairment loss 
Balance - beginning of the year - net 
Additions 
Disposals 
Impairment loss for the year 
Balance - End of the Year 

Seized Properties 
JD 

21,227,347 
(308,655) 

20,918,692 
15,910,958 
(1,945,354) 

(65, l 96) 
34,819,100 

2013 

Other Seized 
Assets 

JD 

1,646,400 
(114,382) 
1,532,018 
1,739,338 

(118,225) 
3,153,131 

The movement on impairment loss on assets seized by the bank against debts during the year is as follows 

2013 
Other Seized 

Seized Properties Assets 
JD JD 

Balance - beginning of the year 308,655 114,382 
Booked provision during the year 234,059 118,225 
Utilized from provision during the year (168,863) 
Balance - End of the Year 373,851 232,607 

Total 
JD 

22,873,747 
(423,037) 

22,450,710 
17,650,296 
(1,945,354) 

(183,421) 
37,972,231 

Total 
JD 

423,037 
352,284 

(168,863) 
606,458 

According to Central Bank of Jordan instructions properties and shares seized by the Bank against debt should be disposed off during 

2012 

Total 
JD 

13,697,519 
(264,936) 

13,432,583 
9,910,248 
(734,020) 
(423,037) 

22,450,710 

2012 

Total 
JD 

264,936 
158,101 

423,037 

a period of two years from the acquisition date. For exceptional cases, Central Bank of Jordan may extend this period for two additional 
years at maximum. 

** This item represents the restructuring balance which used to be amortized over ten years starting from the year 2004 based on the approved 
restructuring agreement by the Central Bank of Jordan and the Council of Ministers, which was approved by the General Assembly of the 
Bank's Shareholders. The International Financial Reporting Standards requires to charge the balance of deferred restructuring to the shareholders 
equity ; however, based on the arrangement with the Central Bank of Jordan, the amortization of restructuring costs balance for the years 2012, 
2011, 2012 and 2013 was deferred, provided that the Bank continue amortization of the balance effective the beginning of the year 2014. 

*** This item represents payments on the financial assets at cost related to shares of the increase in capital of local investments; however, the 
increasing capital procedures were not completed up to the financial statements date, in addition to advance payments for acquiring 
properties that have been owned by Jordan Commercial Bank during the subsequent period of the year 2014. 
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14. Banks and Financial Institutions Deposits

The details of this item are as follows:

December 3 1, 2013 December 3 1, 2012 

Inside Outside Inside Outside 

Kin� Kingdom Total Kingdom Kin�dom 

JD JD JD JD JD 

Current and call accounts 1,875,665 1,842,324 3,717,989 5,904,690 

Time deposits 13,764,369 94,693,419 I 08,457, 788 12,135,000 20,810,762 

Total 15,640,034 96,535,743 112,175,777 12,135,000 26,715,452 

- There is no deposit maturity during three months period as of December 31,2013 and 2012.

• This item includes new deposits were adopted from foreign bank during 2013 amounted to around JD 70 million and its renewed periodically.

15. Customers Deposits 

The details of this item are as follows: 

Current and call accounts 

Saving deposits 

Time deposits subject to notice 

Total 

Current and call accounts 

Saving deposits 

Time deposits subject to notice 

Total 

Individuals 

JD 

84,505,782 

57,788,318 

306,631,192 

448,925,292 

Individuals 

JD 

86,178,860 

42,822,200 

296,162,345 

425,163,405 

December 3 1, 2013 

Com.e.anies 

Small and Government and 
Large Medium Public Sector Total 

JD JD JD JD 

13,147,882 31,123,630 22,489,280 151,266,574 

385,995 1,336,829 4,900 59,516,042 

34,614,88 I 33,895,429 157,079,820 532,221,322 

48,148,758 66,355,888 179,574,000 743,003,938 

December 31, 2012 

Com.e.anies 

Small and Government and 
Large Medium Public Sector Total 

JD JD JD JD 

13,470,743 16,858,100 10,467,938 126,975,641 

5,100 42,827,300 

22,800,161 22,669,462 107,053,526 448,685,494 

36,270,904 39,527,562 117,526,564 618,488,435 

The Government of Jordan and the public sector deposits inside the kingdom amounted to JD 175,974,334 equivalent to 23/7% of total deposits 

as of December 31, 2013 ( JD 114,206,710 equivalent to 18/5% as of December 31, 2012). 

Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JD 151,616,704 equivalent to 20/4% of total customers' deposits as of December 31, 2013 

(JD 127,424,015 as of December 31, 2012, equivalent to 20/6% as of December 31, 2012). 

Restricted deposits amounted to JD 12,514,789 equivalent to 1/7 % of total customers' deposits as of December 31, 2013, JD 12,165,399 

equivalent to 2% as of December 3 I, 2012). 

- Dormant deposits amounted to JD 7,707,043 as of December 31, 2013 (JD 7,205,933 as of December 31, 2012).
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Total 

JD 

5,904,690 

32,945,762 

?8,850,452 



16. Ci'1$h Margins 

Thc dct.1ils of this item MC ns follows· 

Cnsh margins on dirccl credit focilitics 

Ciish margins on indirect crcdil facilities 

Marginal cnsh deals 
Tomi 

17 Borrowed Fuuds 

2013 

December 31, 

2012 

JD 

49,195,260 

15.638,487 

521 .!000 

� 

JD 

39,064,459 

18,070.113 

155,456 
�.290,028 

This i1cm rcprcscn1s mnount of around JD 2 million has been obtained under .i loiln agreement signed with Cent ml Bank of Jordan in ordc-r 10 be used to finance micro, 

small and medium companies 

Year 2012 Bnlnnee represents bn!ancc of Jord:mi:m 1rc.1s11l)' bills and boards in .iu al\lount of JD 14,300,000 as of December 31, 2012 cl:£.1inst repurchasing agreement liabilities 

with Central Bank of Jordau which dated 011 lkccmbcr 26, 2012 with an interest rate of 4/25 % and m.llurity dntc o11 January 2, 2013 and was not renewed. 

The details of this item MC as follows 

Dcccmbc.r 31 2013 

Tre:isu[}' bonds - Central B.ink of Jordan 

December 31 2012 

Treasury bonds• Central B:mk of Jordan 

18 Income Tax 

a_ Income tax provision 

The movement on provision for income tax during the �·e11r was as follows: 

Balance. beginning: of the year 

Income t;,.x incurred on c11rrcnt ye.ir. Palestine branches 

Income ta.x p:iid 
Balrmce • ending of the year 

b Income rnx expense 

Income tax expense for the year in the stntcment of income consists of the following: 

Income tm..: incurred on current ye.ir profit. Palestine brnnches 

Income tax for previous years 

Total 

e .  T nx status 

a. Jordnn Brnnchcs 

Number 

Amoum JD of Premiums 

20 yc..1rs including 5 
2,000,000 years !,'face period 

Number 

Amount JD of Premiums 

One payment 
14,300,000 on Jmmary 2, 2013 

�_____lQ.11 
JD JD 

1,381,748 

950,000 

2.331,748 

2013 
JD 

950,000 

950,000 

579,929 

973,400 

(171,581) 

1,381,748 

2012 
JD 

973,400 

973
0
400 

Guarnn1ccs Interest Rate 

2.5% 

Gu.iraniccs Interest Rnte 

Trc.1sul)' Bonds 4.25% 

A linat settlement \\ith the h1comc .1nd Sales Tax Department for Jord.1n branches has been reached up lo the ycnr 2012 by approving a carry forward lax losses of JD 2,768,425 .ind 

refundable income tax amounted to JD I, 140,884 whereby those tnx losses nnd refundable tax h.i"e been used to CO\'Cr 1he provision for Jord.111 branches for the year 2013, :ind 

accordingly there is no tnx liabilities for the year 2013 for Jord:m branches. 

Income tax rclum for the year 2013 lrns not been submitted yet. howc,·cr semi annwil Pnyment as of JD 571,879 hns been paid and recorded under other assets section during the 

year 2013. 

l>. P.llcstinc branches 

On October 26, 2010 the D.ink appealed to the Income Tax Court of Appeal in Palestine regarding income tax assessment for the year 2005 related 10 interests in suspense from 

previous years returned to customers during the yc:ir 2005, on which there 1s a dispute nbout considering it as :in c.xpcnse. 

During lhe year 2011, the Bauk rccci\'cd n fin.ii clcnrnnce from the Income and Sales Tax Department for the rcsulls of its operations for the yenrs from 2006 to 2009 ;ind currently 

seeks 1hrough its tax consulta11t to reopen the files for the years from 2006 10 2009 due to the expectation of errors in tilx calculation for the bcnclit ofchc Bank. 

The lin:il tax nmount is determined b.ised on the outcomes of the pending case at the Income Tax Court of Appeal for the )'Cl'lr 2005 as well as the results of seeking 10 reopen 1he files 

for the years from 2006 10 2009, :md the result of fin:il sculemcnts for the �-c.irs 2010 and 2011 

c Subsc9uc111 c,·cnts 

During 2014. a final sculcmcnt final settlement hns been reached for the Bank's branches in P:ilcstinc for the period from 2005 until 2010, whereby rm mnount of JO 1,131.541 \\:IS 

paid in agreement with lhc P.1lestininn Income lax Dcp:inmcnt, and to consider it ns a clearance to close the current litigation regarding these years, howc,·cr a final settlement has not 

been reached yet 

According 10 the years 2011 nnd 2012 the Bank subm111cd their meonie trix return for the year 2011 and 2012 :ind currently in process ofscttli11g the 1nx srntus wi1h Income Tnx 

Department in Palestine, howc\·cr fin.11 seulcmcnt has not bcco rc.1chcd ycl 

In the opinion of the Management nnd the Bank's Legal :ind Tn.-.: consultnnts, 110 linbility exceed the booked J)rO\'ision for the Onnk :ind related branches ns of the dale of the 

linancial statcmc111s. and th:it 1he booked tax pro\•ision is sufficicn1 10 sen le the potential trix obligations :is of December JI, 2013. 
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d. Deferred Tax Assets I Liabilities: 

The details of this item are as follows: 

December 3 I, 

2013 2013 2012 

Balance• 
beginning Amounts Balance . End Deferred Deferred 

of the year Additions Released of the Year Tax Tax 

JD JD JD JD JD JD 

Impairment loss in seized properties 308,654 234,059 168,864 373,849 112,155 92,597 

Provision for lawsuits against the Bank 159,000 159,000 47,700 47,700 

Provision for outstanding lawsuits 1,191,257 234,060 32,525 1,392,792 417,838 360,257 

Provision for staff indemnity 471,364 104,991 58,936 517,419 155,226 141,409 

Provision for laws11i1s against the Bank 402,508 90,403 210,079 282,832 84,850 120,751 

Other provisions 624,494 2,365 54,177 572,682 171,805 32,789 

Total 3,157,277 665,878 524,581 3,298,574 989,574 795,503 

Deferred tax assets which amounted to JD 989,574 as of December 3I, 2013 (JD 795,503 as of December 31,2012) were not recorded in the Banks' records as 

the Bank offsets the deferred tax losses from the profits for the year 2013, and it is not certain to benefit from the other tax assets in the near future. 

e. Summary of Reconciliation Between Declared Income and Taxable Income: 

Declared income 

Add: Unacceptable tax expenses 

� Exempted tax income 

Taxable income 

Income Tax Rates: 

Jordan branches 

Palestine branches 

19. Other Provisions 
The details of this item are as follows: 

Year 2013 

Provision for lawsuits against the Bank 

Provision for staf
f 

indemnity 
Other provisions • 

Year 2012 
Provision for lawsuits against the Bank 

Provision for staff indemnity 
Other provisions 

Balance• 
beginning 
of the year 

402,508 
471,364 
109,295 
983.167 

Balance• 
beginning 
of the year 

243,420 
432,226 
128,917 
804.563 

Expense of 
the year 

JD 
90,403 

104,991 

195,394 

Expense of 
the year 

328,163 
83,138 
5,000 

416,301 

Transferred 
from the 

Paid during beginning 
the year balance 

JD JD 
(2!0,079) 

(58,936) 
96,182 

(269,015) 96,182 

Transferred 
from the 

Paid of beginning 
the year balance 

(169,075) 
(44,000) 
(24,622) 

(237,697) 

2013 

JD 

4,149,256 

1,263,913 

(3,402,412) 

2
l
0)0,757 

30% 

20% 

Transferred 
during the year 

JD 

(205,477) 
(205,477) 

Transferred 
durin!l the year 

• This item represents credit cards provision which has been transferred from credit facilities provision as per the Central Bank of Jordan requiremcnls. 
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2012 

JD 

3,036,278 

977,248 

(1,398,994) 

2,614,532 

30% 

20% 

Balance • End 
of the Year 

JD 
282,832 

517,419 

800,251 

Balance• End 
of the Year 

402,508 
471,364 
109,295 
983,167 



20. Other Liabilities

The details of this item are as follows: 

Acceptable checks 

Accrued interests 

Refundable and various deposits 

Forward currency exchange - Central Bank of Jordan 

Foreign currency positions 

Safe deposits boxes 

Shareho.lders' deposits 

Income tax deposits 

Accrued expenses 

Inwards transfers 

Board of Directors' remunerations 

Received amounts on the sale of land and real estate (Note 13) 

Others 

Total 

21. Authorized and Paid-up Capital

December 3 1, 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

5,260,531 

3,758,151 

3,803,917 

62,910 

12,250 

26,387 

538,914 

380 

35,000 

1,666,118 

98,819 

15,263,377 

2,926,875 

2,502,789 

2,254,211 

487,006 

42,424 

54,661 

12,250 

17,132 

378,836 

5,497 

35,000 

658,523 

202,028 

9,577,232 

The General Assembly of the Bank resolved in its extraordinary meeting held on December 20, 201 I to approve the 

increase of the authorized, issued and paid-up capital from JD/ Share 82,769,898 as of December 31, 20 l l, to become 

JD/Share l 00 million, with an increase of JD/Share 17,230,102, by issuing 17,230,102 shares for private underwriting for 

the price of I JD per share for the Bank's registered shareholders. The underwriting procedures have been completed 

for JD/Share I 0,572,281 and the issued and paid-up capital became JD/Share 93,342,179 as of December 3I, 2012. 

On January 30, 2013 the process of increasing authorized and paid-up capital has been completed whereas the unquoted 

shares deposited at the Securities Depository Center amounted to JD/Shares 6,657,821 were sold through Amman Stock 

Exchange, and the authorized and paid-up capital became JD/Shares 100,000,000 in line with Central Bank of Jordan 

requirements. 

22. Reserves

The details of the reserves as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

a. Statutory Reserve

This account represents the accumulated amount of the appropriations from income before tax at 10% during the year 

and previous years according to the Banks Law and Jordanian Companies Law. This amount is not distributable to the 

shareholders. 
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b. General Banking Risks Reserve

This reserve represents the general banking risks reserve in accordance ,vith the Central Bank of Jordan regulations and Palestinian 

Monetary Authority . 

The following represents the general banking risks reserve according to the Banks' branches· 

Jordan branches 

Palestine branches 

c. Cyclical ity Reserve

December 3 I, 

2013 

JD 

4,401,302 

738,974 

5,140,276 

2012 

JD 

3,614,043 

584,620 

4,198,663 

This item represents the risk reserve taken in accordance with Palestinian Monetary Authority at a percentage of 15% from net income 

after tax for Palestine branches for the purpose of supporting the Bank's capital in Palestine and to face risk related to Banking 

sector. This reserve will accumulate until reaching 20% of the paid - up capital. It is not allowed to use any part of the cyclicality 

fluctuation reserve or to reduce it without pre-approval from the Palestinian Monetary Authority. 

- Restricted Reserves as of the financial statements date are as follows 

December 31 

Reserve Name 2013 

JD 

Statutory Reserve 8,449,542 

General Banking Risks Reserve 5,140,276 

Cyclicality Reserve 897,196 

23. Fair Value Reserve 

The Movement during the year on this item during the year is as follows: 

Balance - beginning of the year 

Less: Unrealized income (losses) - net 

Released from selling financial assets at fair value 
through statement of comprehensive income 

Effect of selling financial assets at fair value 
through statement of comprehensive income 

Balance - End of the Year 

2013 

JD 

(4,491,843) 

721,643 

(81,699) 

(3,851,899) 
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2012 

JD 

8,034,616 

4,198,663 

748,884 

2012 

JD 

(4,373.535) 

(1,002,983) 

996,734 

(112,059) 

(4,491,843) 

Restriction Nature 

Restricted according to Banks law 
and Companies law 

Restricted according the Central Bank 
of Jordan and the Palestinian 
Monetary Authority 

Palestinian Monetary Authority 
requirements 



24. Retained Earnings

The movement during the year on this item during the year is as follows: 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

Balance - beginning of the year 1,639,469 1,223,747 

Income for the year 3,199,256 2,062,878 

(Transferred) to reserves (1,504,851) (762,481) 

Released from selling financial assets at fair value through 
comprehensive income (996,734) 

Realize_d gains from selling financial assets at fair value through 
comprehensive income 81,699 112,059 

Balance - End of the Year 3,415,573 1,639,469 

- Retained earnings include an amount of JD 1,974,218 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, restricted against the effect of adopting

International Financial Reporting Standard No. (9) in accordance with Jordan Securities Commission instructions relating to unrealize

differences in the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through statement of comprehensive income net of what has been actual]

realized through selling transactions.
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25. Interest Income

The details of this item are as follows: 

2013 2012 

Direct credit facilities: JD JD 

Individuals (retail) 

Overdraft accounts 269,464 87,949 

Loans and promissory notes 8,554,439 5,610,035 

Credit cards 405,056 327,688 

Real - estate loans 6,517,649 6,757,851 

Companies 

Large 

Overdraft accounts 5;813,455 4,409,851 

Loans and promissory notes 13,071,715 12,371,336 

Small and medium 

Overdraft accounts 1,743,312 1,996,309 

Loans and promissory notes 3,867,939 2,915,633 

Government and public sector 986,729 544,779 

Balances at central banks 532,109 201,893 

Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions 994,241 835,816 

Financial assets at amortized cost 14,293,234 9,552,354 

Total 57,049,342 45,611,494 

26. Interest Expense

The details of this item are as follows: 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

Deposits at banks and financial institutions 3,201,349 874,099 

Customers deposits 

Current and call accounts 635,679 358,961 

Saving accounts 683,804 461,930 

Time and notice deposits 24,856,196 18,954,411 

Cash margins 1,848,781 956,499 

BotTOwed funds 24,909 

Deposit Insurance Corporation fees 1,185,216 1,141,478 

Total 32,435,934 22,747,378 
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27. Net Commission Income

The details of this item are as follows: 

Direct credit facilities commissions 

[ndirect credit facilities commissions 

Total 

28. Foreign Exchange fncome

The details of this item are as follows: 

Resulted from trading/transactions 

Resulted from valuation 

Total 

2013 

JD 

2,874,509 

2,993,151 

5,867,660 

2013 

JD 

291,003 

625,527 

916,530 

2012 

JD 

2,154,753 

3,179,791 

5,334,544 

2012 

JD 

345,872 

558,103 

903,975 

29. Gain (Loss) from Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The details of this item are as follows: 

Year 2013 

Companies' quoted shares 

Year 2012 

Companies' quoted shares 

Realized 

Gain 

JD 

43,420 

Unrealized 

(Losses) 

JD 

(58,752) 

Realized Unrealized 

Dividends 

JD 

70,272 

Total 

JD 

54,940 

(Losses) Gain Dividends Total 

JD JD JD JD 

(120,126) 75,604 24,846 (l 9,676)
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30. Other Income

The details of this item are as follows: 

2013 2012 

JD JD 

Credit cards income 596,581 455,259 

Rental of safe deposit boxes 23,549 25,382 

Collection services income 5,663 18,718 

Income from immediate issuance of statements of accounts 13,414 15,868 

Telecommunication income 106,644 97,492 

Suspended interest transferred to income 888,309 374,381 

Recovery of debts previously written-off 597,715 667,914 

Income from selling seized properties 940,706 52,647 

Proceeds from seized properties 55,360 7,930 

Various commissions 146,267 267,520 

Gain on sale of property and equipment - 7,821 

Others 631,008 176,350 

Total 4,005,216 2,167,282 

31. Employees Expenses

The details of this item are as follows:

2013 2012 

JD JD 

Salaries, allowances and employees' benefits 8,138,204 6,942,879 

Bank's contribution in social security 737,577 673,397 

Bank's contribution in provident fund 29,195 44,138 

Medical expenses 432,727 511,507 

Staff training expenses 144,08 l 68,005 

Per diems 172,689 135,253 

Employees life insurance expense 19,288 21,820 

Uniforms 36,273 18,925 

Employees gas allowance 26,986 

Total 9,737,020 8,415,924 
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32. Other Expenses
The details of this item are as follows: 

Rents 
Stationery and publications 
Water, electricity and telecommunication expenses 
Legal and lawyer fees 
Maintenance and car expenses 
Insurance expenses 
Programs and computers maintenance 
Board of Directors' transpo11ation and attendance of meeting fees 
Fees, licenses and taxes 
Advertisements and subscriptions 
Professional and consultancy fees 
Collection incentives 
Donations and social responsibility 
Cleaning and services 
Credit card expenses 
Hospitality 
Board of Directors' remunerations 
Restructuring program expenses 
Capital increase expenses 
Impairment loss of seized real estate 
Impairment loss of seized financial assets 
Money shipping expenses 
Others 

Total 

33. Earnings Per Share Pe11ains to Bank's Shareholders
The details of this item are as follows:

Income for the year attributable to the Banks' shareholders 

Weighted average number of shares 

Earnings per share pertains to Banks' shareholders: 
(Basic) 

Earnings per share pe11ains to Banks' shareholders: 
(Diluted) 

34. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The details of this item are as follows: 

Balances at central banks due within three months 
Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions due within three months 

Less: Banks and financial institutions deposits due within three months 
Borrowed funds - Note (17) 
Restricted balances - Note (5) 

Total 
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2013 2012 
JD JD 
610,359 764,631 
451,810 392,151 

1,165,731 1,032,238 
30 I ,402 230,080 
516,012 461,249 
169,281 155,026 
693,770 661,549 
132,488 144,266 
486,862 285,784 

1,485,767 1,318,949 
393,595 361,002 
438,619 319,622 
320,582 307,660 
310,343 305,946 
459,015 399,378 
143,096 122,069 

35,000 35,000 
57,710 

53,920 22,233 
234,059 50,272 
118,225 

58,286 77,845 
212,469 196,230 

8,790,691 7,700,890 

2013 2012 
JD JD 

3,199,256 2,062,878 

Share Share 
I 00,000,000 93,342,179 

JD I Share JD I Share 

-/032 -/022 

-/032 -/022 

December 31, 
2013 2012 
JD JD 

123,785,204 
61,300,837 

(112,175,777) 
(2,000,000) 

(401,2242 

70,509,040 

103,655,689 
68,368,860 

(38,850,452) 
(14,300,000) 
(1,062,644) 

117,811,453 



35. Transactions with Related Parties

The Bank entered into transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and related parties and companies represented by the 

members of the Board of Directors and executive management within the normal banking practice and according to the normal interest 

rates and trading commissions. All of the credit facilities granted to related parties are considered as performing facilities and no 

impairment provision has been taken as of the date of the financial statement. 

Financial statements include transactions and balances with related parties as follows: 

Total 

BOD Members Companies 
December 3 I ,  

and their Represented by 

On- Statement of Financial Position Items: 

Deposits 

Direct credit facilities 

Cash margins 

Off- Statement of Financial Position Items: 

Letters of guarantee 

Letters of acceptance 

Related Parties 

JD 

20,250,776 

265,928 

17,590 

52,080 

the BOD 

JD 

4,359,840 

19,678,062 

477,292 

1,270,458 

5,258,834 

Employees 2013 2012 

JD JD JD 

24,610,616 10,304,122 

2,252,226 22,196,216 20,071,875 

477,292 542,202 

1,288,048 427,932 

5,310,914 3,722,905 

Total 

Statement of Income items: 

Interest and commission income* 

Interest and commission expense **

* Credit interest rate ranges between 8% to 8/25%.

** Debit interest rate ranges between 5/85% to 6/9% .

Executive Management Remunerations 

JD 

14,525 

609,687 

JD 

1,350,948 

134,697 

2013 

JD JD 

160,892 1,526,365 

744,384 

Executive management salaries and remunerations for the Bank amounted to JD 1,482,485 for the year 2013 (JD 1,145,001 for 

the year 2012). 
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2012--

JD 

1,426,553 

673,825 



36. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities not Shown at Fair Value
in the Financial Statements 

There are no significant differences between the book value and the fair value of 
the financial assets and liabilities as of year - end 2013 and 2012. 

3 7. Risks Management 
The Board of Directors performs its role in ensuring that the Bank manages the 
various risks and adopts the policies and procedures that streamline the Bank's 
risks management through the Risks and Audit Committee. Moreover, the Bank 
sets the risks acceptable limits (risk appetite). 

The Risks Management Department evaluates, controls, and recommends 
mitigating risks, and submits the necessary reports to higher management 
independently from the other Bank's departments (risk takers) which perform 
other banking activities in order to ensure the objectivity of the Risks 
Management Department in analyzing the various risk types. 

Furthermore, the Risks Management Department is responsible for the market 
operating, credit, and liquidity risks (within the Assets and Liabilities Model) of 
the Bank's local and external branches. It submits its reports to the Risks and 
Audit Committee within the Board of Directors. These reports are audited by the 
Internal Audit Department. 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its credit terms 
and/or its creditworthiness deteriorates resulting in financial loss to the Bank. 

The Board of Directors periodically reviews the credit risk management policies 
compatible with the laws and the Central Bank of Jordan instructions after being 
prepared by the concerned departments. Moreover, the Board of Directors 
ensures that management of the Bank works according to their policies and 
executes the related requirements. These policies include the Bank's credit 
policy through which many factors are determined such as: 

Setting clear requirements, policies, and decision-making procedures relating to 
the new or to be renewed credit facilities or any material amendment thereon 
within specified authorities that match the size and specifications of the credit 
facilities. Among the factors taken into consideration when granting credit are 
the purpose of the credit facilities and payment sources. 

Taking decisions within qualified management levels. Moreover, the Bank has 
various credit committees at the executive management level and the Board of 
Directors level. This is done away from the impact of conflict of interest and in 
a manner that guarantees the soundness and independence of the evaluation 
procedures of the customer requesting credit and the related compatibility with 
the Bank's credit policy requirements. 
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Laying out clear and effective policies and procedures for managing and 

executing credit including continuous analysis of the ability and readiness of the 
borrower to pay according to contractual terms, monitoring the credit 
documentation and any credit terms and covenants, and continuously controlling 

and evaluating guarantees. 

Establishing adequate policies and procedures to ensure evaluation and 
management of non-performing credit and its classification in addition to 
evaluating the adequacy of the provisions monthly based on the instructions of 

the Central Bank of Jordan and other regulatory authorities under which the 
Bank operates. This is in addition to a clear policy for writing off debt. 
Moreover, the Board of Directors approves the adequacy of these provisions. 

Having an independent department that follows up on troubled debts through 
amicable settlements prior to dealing with them legally. 

Determining the type and size of the required guarantee based on the customer's 
credit risk evaluation according to clear acceptance procedures and customers 

evaluation standards. 

Periodically monitoring the fair value of the guarantees. In case their value 
becomes less than what is specified in the loan terms, the customer is required to 
provide more guarantees. Upon assessing the adequacy of the provisions, the 
necessary evaluation of the guarantees is performed. 

Disposing of any guarantee owned after repayment of the customer's debts. In 

general, seized real estates are not used for the Bank's operations. 

Having an internal credit rating system for its customers documented and 
approved by the Board of Directors. Any factor contributing to the customer's 
default is considered in a manner that helps in measuring and rating the 
customer's risks, and consequently, faciliting the decision-making process and 
the pricing of credit facilities. 

Having clear rating standards taking into consideration the various financial and 
non-financial factors. The credit rating system is reviewed and evaluated 

independently from the credit department through the Risks Management 
Department in coordination with the concerned departments. 
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Having specified and documented controls and ceilings with clear policies and 
procedures that guarantee commitment to these ceilings and the necessity to 
obtain prior approvals for any excesses. These controls and ceilings are 
reviewed and amended periodically, if necessary. Moreover, there are ceilings 
specified and approved by the Board of Directors relating to dealing with 
various banks, countries, and economic sectors. 

Providing the Board of Directors with a clear picture and analysis of the credit 
portfolio through the Risks Management Department that clarifies its quality 
and its various classifications and any concentrations therein, in addition to 
historical and banking benchmarks. 

The Bank adheres to the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan relating to 
credit concentration and related parties. The Bank deals with them on an 
aggregate basis and accords them special care, exercises control, and expresses 
explicit and clear disclosure thereon when preparing the Bank' financial 
statements. The required credit facilities are presented by the related parties to 
the Board of Directors provided that the persons granted the credit facilities 
have no influence over the Board of Directors, and receive no preferential 
treatment over the Bank's customers. 
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Credit risk exposure ( after the provision for impairment and interest in suspense and before guarantees 

and other risks - mitigating factors): 

On-Statement of Financial Position Items 

Balances at the central banks 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 

Direct Credit Facilities - Net: 

Individuals 

Real estate loans 

Companies 

Large companies 

Small and medium institutions (SMEs) 

Government and public sector 

Treasury Bonds and Bills: 

Financial assets at amortized cost - Net 

Pledged financial assets 

Other assets 

Total 

Off-Statement of Financial Position Items 

Letters of guarantee 

Letters of credit 

Letters of acceptance 

Unutilized credit facilities ceilings 

Total 
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December 31, 

2013 

JD 

106,486,716 

61,300,837 

102,753,256 

72,838,680 

242,779,880 

82,766,665 

16,139,632 

257,322,849 

5,553,026 

947,941,541 

105,511,582 

39,158,054 

3,556,873 

51,590,769 

1,147,758,819 

2012 

JD 

83,194,318 

68,368,860 

57,949,259 

74,266,455 

217,609,981 

71,629,014 

19,069,471 

149,298,558 

14,300,000 

3,567,841 

759,253,757 

88,224,730 

47,393,133 

3,745,050 

30,135,915 

928,752,585 



Credit exposures according to the degree of risk are categorized according to the following table: 

December 31 20 I 3 

Low risk 

Acceptable risk 

Of which is due: 

within 30 days 

from 3 I to 60 days 

Watch list 

Non-perfonning: 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Bad debt 

Total 

Less: Provision for impairment loss 

Interest in suspense 

Net 

December 3 I, 2012 

Low risk 

Acceptable risk 

Of which is due: 

within 30 days 

from 31 to 60 days 

Watch list 

Non-performing: 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Bad debt 

Total 

Less: Provision for impainnent loss 

Interest in suspense 

Net 

Real Estate 

Individuals Loans 

JD JD 

328,796 

100,161,231 68,916,457 

147,906 28,650 

38,025 57,506 

971,664 998,991 

1,790,933 31,882 

1,685,372 2,691,441 

467,214 6,099,599 

I 05,405,210 78,738,370 

(2,148,943) (4,622,004) 

(503,01 I) (1,277,686) 

I 02, 753,256 72,838,680 

Real Estate 

Individuals Loans 

JO JO 

648,850 

56,343,392 69,327,683 

321,190 

78,304 

262,736 1,010,441 

147,259 

242,040 1,582,941 

1,894,478 7,380,863 

59,391,496 79,449,187 

(1,073,172) (4,065,980) 

(369,065) (!,! 16,752) 

57,949,259 74,266,455 

Companies 

Small and 
Large Medium 

JD JD 

18,669,244 7,341,292 

161,343,164 64,686,858 

4,074,844 2,653,687 

1,134,729 1,236,013 

5 I ,475,965 7,702,432 

1,334,034 174,483 

830,000 1,514,636 

53,635,579 9,798,618 

287,287,986 91,218,3 I 9 

(31,007,275) (4,996,276) 

(I 3,500,83 I) (3,455,378) 

242,779,880 82,766,665 

Companies 

Small and 

Large Medium 

JO JO 

10,486,905 322,172 

137,747,226 60,877,707 

1,431,527 1,788,002 

5,976,009 571,447 

46,382,105 5,578,145 

715,329 

3,326,037 2,923,438 

55,398,683 9,168,685 

253,340,956 79,585,476 

(26,375,066) (4,822,243) 

(9,355,909) (3, 134,2 I 9) 

217,609,981 71,629,014 

Bonds and 
Government Treasury Bills 

and Public and Pledged 

Sector Other Assets Financial Assets 

JD JD JD 

16,139,632 229,761,205 

5,553,026 27,561,644 

341,368 

16,139,632 5,553,026 257,664,217 

(283,600) 

(57,768) 

16,139,632 5,553,026 257,322,849 

Government 

and Public Bonds and 

Sector Other Assets Treasury Bills 

JO JO JO 

19,069,471 130,56 I ,3 78 

3,567,841 33,037,180 

318,372 

19,069,471 3,567,841 163,916,930 

(283,600) 

(34,772) 

19,069,471 3,567,84 I I 63,598,558 

The aggregate debt balance becomes due when one of the installments or interest is due. Moreover, the overdraft account is considered due when it exceeds the ceiling. 

- Credit exposures includes facilities, balances, deposits at banks ,bonds and treasury bills and any other assets that has a credit exposure. 
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Banks and 

Other Financial 
Institutions Total 

JD JD 

I 06,486,716 378,726,885 

61,300,837 489,523,21? 

6,905,087 

2,466,273 

61,149,052 

3,331,332 

6,721,449 

70,342,378 

167,787,553 1,009,794,313 

(43,058,098) 

(18,794,674) 

I 67,787,553 947,941,541 

Banks and 

Other Financial 

Institutions Total 

JO JD 

83, I 94,3 I 8 244,283,094 

68,368,860 429,269,88S 

3,540,7IS 

6,625,76C 

53,233,427 

862,588 

8,074,456 

74,161,081 

151,563,178 809,884,535 

(36,620,061) 

(14,010,717) 

151,563,178 759,253,757 



The following the details of distribution for fair value of collaterals against direct credit facilities: 

Real Estate 
December 3 I, 2013 Individuals Loans 

JD JD 

Guarantees against: 

Low risk 328,796 

Acceptable risk 3,148,170 68,916,457 

Watch list 998,991 

Non-perfonning: 

Substandard 31,882 

Doubtful 940,254 2,691,441 

Bad debt 183,290 6,099,599 

4,600,510 78,738,370 

Ofit: 

Cash margins 328,796 

Accepted letters of guarantee 

Real estate 1,792,474 78,738,370 

Trade stocks 765,01 I 

Vehicles and equipment 1,714,229 

other 

4,600,510 78,738,370 

Companies ___ 

Small and 
Large Medium 

JD JD 

18,669,244 7,341,292 

169,564,245 92,851,851 

37,855,147 8,848,950 

997,910 280,456 

2,641,950 1,852,128 

21,297,067 8,741,140 

251,025,563 I 19,915,817 

12,822,957 7,341,292 

3,946,389 

190,492,087 97,868,037 

39,025,018 7,958,165 

2,839,214 6,748,323 

1,899,898 

251,025,563 119,915,817 

The following the details of distribution for fair value of collaterals against direct credit facilities: 

Companies 

Real Estate Small and 
December 3 I, 2012 Individuals Loans Large Medium 

JD JD JD JD 

Guarantees against: 

Low risk 649,200 10,486,905 364,709 

Acceptable risk 4,032,597 70,388,124 147,904,640 76,755,781 

Watch list 46,382,105 5,578,145 

Non-perfonning: 

Substandard 147,259 575,990 

Doubtful 148,118 1,582,941 169,601 4,018,003 

Bad debt 1,741,400 7,380,863 24,284,097 9,869,337 

6,571,315 79,499,187 229,227,348 97,161,965 

Ofit: 

Cash margins 641,200 10,381,459 364,709 

Accepted letters of guarantee 105,446 

Real estate 3,284,844 79,499,187 170,555,954 85,728,556 

Trade stocks 525,956 47,048,489 7,101,028 

Vehicles and equipment 2,119,315 1,136,000 3,967,672 

other 

6,571,315 79,499,187 229,227,348 97J_6I,965 
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Govenunent 
and Public 

Sector Total 

JD JD 

16,139,632 42,478,964 

334,480,723 

47,703,088 

1,310,248 

8,125,773 

36,321,096 

16,139,632 470,419,892 

20,493,045 

3,946,389 

368,890,968 

47,748,194 

11,301,766 

16,139,632 18,039,530 

16,139,632 470,419,892 

Government 
and Public 

Sector Total 

JD JD 

19,069,471 30,570,285 

299,081,142 

51,960,250 

723,249 

5,918,663 

43,275,697 

19,069,471 431,529,286 

11,387,368 

105,446 

339,068,541 

54,675,473 

7,222,987 

19,069,471 19,069,471 

19,069,471 431,529
.,_
286 



Scheduled Debts: 

Scheduled debts are debts that have been previously classified as non-performing 
credit facilities, and have been taken out from the framework of non-perfo1ming 
credit facilities according to proper scheduling treatment and classified under watch 
list debts. Furthermore, scheduled debts amounted to JD 21,919,210 as of 
December 31, 2013 (JD 35,824,852 as of December 31, 2012). 

Restructured Debts 

Restructuring debts means reorgamzmg credit facilities in terms· of adjusting 
payments, extending their terms, postponing some installments, or extending the 
grace period. Restructured debts amounted to JD 17,663,901 as of December 31, 2013 
(JD 3,368,007 as of December 31, 2012). 

Bonds, Bills and Treasury Bills 

The following table illustrates the classification of bonds, bills, and debentures 
according to the external rating institutions: 

Rating grade 

Unclassified 
Governmental and guaranteed 

by government 

December 31 

2013 

JD 
27,561,644 

229,761,205 

257,322,849 

2012 

JD 
33,037,180 

116,261,378 

149,298,558 

* All bonds, bills and treasury bills are included in the p01tfolio of financial assets
at amortized cost.
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Credit Risk Exposure according to Geographical Areas is as follows: 

Geographical Area 

Balances at central banks 
Balances at banks and 
financial institutions 

Direct credit facilities - Net: 
Individuals 
Real estate loans 

Companies: 
Large 
Small and medium (SMEs) 

Government and public sector 

Financial assets at 
amortized cost-net 

Pledged financial assets 
Other assets 

Total/for the Current Year 

Total/Comparative Figures 

Inside the 
Kingdom 

JD 
94,231,499 

51,096,221 

95,970,916 
72,838,680 

242,779,880 
70,465,850 

625,000 

242,322,849 

5,469,036 

875,799,931 

654,840,207 

* Excluding Middle East Countries.

Other Middle 
East Countries 

JD 
12,255,217 

6,827,157 

6,782,340 
-

-

12,300,815 
15,514,632 

15,000,000 

83,990 

68,764,151 

82,996,428 

Europe Asia* Africa * America** 

JD JD JD JD 
- - - -

3,709,464 16,064 235,429 (583,498) 

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - -

- - - -

3,709,464 16,064 235,429 (583,498) 

19,949,458 19,424 - 1,448,240

** This item represent balance at foreign bank accounts that have been covered during the subsequent period in 2014.
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Total 

JD 
106,486,716 

61,300,837 

102,753,256 
72,838,680 

242,779,880 
82,766,665 
16,139,632 

257,322,849 

5,553,026 

947,941,541 

759,253,757 



Credit Risk Exposure according to Economic Sector is as follows· 

lmpainnent 
Tourism, Government Provision and 

Transportation Hotels and Services and and Public Interest in 
Economic Sector Financial Industrial Trade Real - estate AS:ricultural Shares Services Restaurants Public Individuals Sector Other �ense Total 

JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD 

Balances at central banks I 06,486, 716 106.486, 716 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 61,300,837 61,300,837 

Direct credit facilities• net 10,969,036 73,194,761 147,628,156 78,738,370 28,776,426 37,643,984 7,256, I 84 13,682,563 45,718,421 97,979,063 16,139,632 21,062,921 (61,511,404) 5 I 7,278, II 3 

Financial assets at amortized cost - net 2,006,937 8,880,000 1,675,000 14,999,707 229,761,205 257,322,849 

Other assets 5,553.026 
5,553,026 

Total / for the Current Year 186,316 552 73,194,761 147,628,156 87 618,370 28,776,426 37,643,984 7 256,184 15,357,563 60,718,128 97,979,063 245,900.837 21,062,921 (61,511,404) 947,941,541 

Total I Comparative Figures I 70,200,937 87,226,384 125,993,374 82,533,925 30,819,714 33,501,911 7,643,660 17,451,462 25,503,978 59,391,496 164,4 I 7,225 5,250,469 (50,680,778) 759,253,757 
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37/a- Market Risks 

Market risks are the potential losses that may arise from the changes in market prices 

such as the change in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity 

instrument prices, and consequently, the change in the fair value of the cash flows of 

the on-and off - statement of financial position financial instruments. 

The Bank has specified policies and procedures through which market risks are 

identified, measured, monitored, and controlled. These policies and procedures are 
reviewed periodically. Moreover, the Investment Policy Committee studies and 

recommends them after ensuring their compatibility with the instructions of the 

Central Bank of Jordan. After that, they are approved by the Board of Directors. 

The acceptable risks policy is set within the Treasury operations and includes ceilings 
that govern market risks. These ceilings are adopted and their application is ensured 
periodically and constantly through monitoring their implementation by the risks 

management Department and submitting various periodic reports to the Assets and 
Liabilities Committee as well as to the Board of Directors. 

The Bank has shares and bonds investment portfolio for trading purposes (Financial 
Assets designated at Fair value through profit or loss) and adopts the sensitivity 
analysis method thereon whereby present risks are measured according to the 
Standardized Approach for calculating minimum capital based on Basel Committee 
recommendations. 

Interest Rate Risk: 

Interest rate risk results from the potential change in interest rates, and consequently, 
the potential impact on the cash flows or the fair value of financial instruments. 

The Bank is exposed to interest rate risks as a result of the timing gaps of reprising 
assets and liabilities. These gaps are periodically monitored by the Assets and 
Liabilities Committee. Moreover, various hedging methods are used to remain within 

the acceptable interest rate gap limits. 
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Sensitivity Analysis: 

For the Year 2013 
Change Interest Income 

increase in Sensitivity Owners' Equity 
Cun-ency Interest Rate ( Gain / Loss) Sensitivity 

% JD JD 
US Dollar 1 (67,844) 
Euro 1 (339) 
GBP 1 (3,694) 
ILS 1 (15,055) 
Other cun-encies 1 (101,862) 

Change Interest Income 
(decrease) in Sensitivity Owners' Equity 

Currency Interest Rate ( Gain / Loss) Sensitivity 

% JD JD 
US Dollar 1 67,844 
Euro 1 339 
GBP 1 3,694 
ILS 1 15,055 
Other currencies 1 101,862 

For the Year 2012 
Change Interest Income 

increase in Sensitivity Owners' Equity 
Currency Interest Rate ( Gain / Loss) Sensitivity 

% JD JD 
US Dollar 1 50,135 
Euro 1 5,265 
GBP 1 332 
ILS 1 (27,565) 
Other cmrencies 1 39,433 

Change - Interest Income 
(decrease)in Sensitivity Owners' Equity 

Currency Interest Rate ( Gain / Loss) Sensitivity 

% JD JD 
US Dollar 1 (50,135) 
Euro 1 (5,265) 
GBP 1 (332) 
ILS 1 27,565 
Other currencies 1 (39,433) 
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37/b-Foreign Currencies Risk 
The following table illustrates the cmrencies to which the Bank is exposed and the 
potential and reasonable change in their rates against the Jordanian Dinar and related 
impact on Statement of Income. The currencies positions are monitored daily to 
ensure that they are within the determined limits. Moreover, the related reports are 
submitted to the Assets and Liabilities Committee and Board of Directors. 

For the Year 2013 
Change in Foreign Effect on Effect on Owners' 

Currency Currency Rate Profit or Loss Equity 

% JD JD 
USO 5 (339,220) 
Euro 5 (1,335) 
GBP 5 18,468 
ILS 5 (75,274) 
Other currencies 5 509,308 

For the Year 2012 
Change in Foreign Effect on Effect on Owners' 

Currency Currency Rate Profit or Loss Equity 

% JD JD 

USO 5 250,673 
Euro 5 26,322 
GBP 5 1,656 
ILS 5 (137,822) 
Other currencies 5 197,165 

Risks of Changes in Shares Prices 

This represents the risk resulting from the decline in the fair value of the 
investment portfolio of the shares due to the changes in the value of the shares 
indicators and the change in the value of shares individually. 

For the Year 2013 

Indicator of 

Amman and Palestine 
Stock Exchange 
Amman and Palestine 
Stock Exchange 

For the Year 2012 

Indicator of 

Amman and Palestine 
Stock Exchange 
Amman and Palestine 
Stock Exchange 

Change in 
Indicator 

% 
5 

(5) 

Change in 

Indicator 

% 

5 

(5) 
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Effect on Effect on 
Profit or Loss Owners' Equity 

JD JD 

272,024 481,937 

(272,024) (481,937) 

Effect on Effect on 
Profit or Loss Owners' Equity 

JD JD 

155,598 298,845 

(155,598) (298,845) 



Interest Rate Repricing Gap: 

The Bank adopts the assets - liabilities compatibility principle and the suitability of maturities to narrow gaps through categorizing assets and liabilities into various maturities or price review 

maturities, whichever is nearer, to lower risks in interest rates, studying gaps in the related interest rates, and using hedging policies through the adoption of advanced financial instruments 

such as derivatives. 

Reclassification is made in accordance with pricing interest pe1iods or maturity, whichever is nearer. 

Interest rate sensitivity is as follows: 
Interest Rate Repricing Gap 

One Month 

Less than Up to 3 3 Months Up 6 Months Up One Year More than 

December 3 I, 20 13 One Month Months to 6 Months to I Year Up to 3 Years 3 Years 

Assets: JD JD JD JD JD JD 

Cash and balances at central banks 38,000,000 7,444,500 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 53,033,225 6,158,502 

Direct credit facilities -net 31,418,066 58,624,880 37,087,210 72,879,332 7,874,577 309,394,048 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

Financial assets at amortized cost 1,999,960 8,002,434 18,001,923 42,379,137 137,862,408 49,076,987 

Pledged financial assets 

Property and equipment - net 

Intangible assets - net 

Other assets 5,090,983 

Total Assets 129,542,234 72,785,816 55,089,133 115,258,469 145,736,985 365,915,535 

Liabilities: 

Banks and financial institutions deposits 69,620,777 42,555,000 

Customers' deposits 373,895,708 81,905,111 76,691,719 58,894,696 

Cash margin 33,222,891 6,040,526 9,060,789 17,030,541 

Borrowed funds 2,000,000 

Other provisions 

Income tax provision 

Other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 476,739,376 130,500,637 85,752,508 75,925,237 2,000,000 
Interest Rate Repricing Gap (347,197,142) (57,714,821) (30,663,375) 39,333,232 145,736,985 363,915,535 

December 31 20 12 

Tota I Assets 136,681,393 44,423,873 37,361,904 101,827,124 119,05 I ,665 267,707,464 
Total Liabilities 406,572,639 77,622,107 60,242,727 42,711,951 

Interest Rate Repricing Gap (269,891,246) (33,198,234) (22,880,823) 59,115_,__!_Zl_ _ _  I 19
_,
051 ,665 267,707,464 
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Non-Interest 

Bearing Total 

JD JD 

78,340,704 123,785,204 

2,109,1 IO 61,300,837 

517,278,113 

5,440,483 5,440,483 

9,638,731 9,638,731 

257,322,849 

24,367,275 24,367,275 

722,991 722,991 

50,033,061 55,124,044 
170,652,355 1,054,980,527 

112, I 75,777 

151,616,704 743,003,938 

65,354,747 

2,000,000 

2,331,748 2,331,748 

800,252 800,252 

15,263,377 15,263,377 

170,012,081 940,929,839 
640,274 114,050,688 

137,289,607 844,343,030 

153,721,638 740,871,062 
(16,432,031) 103,471,968 



Concentration in Foreign Currencies Risk: 

December 3 I. 2013 

Assets: 

Cash and balances at the central banks 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 

Direct credit facilities - net 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

Property and equipment - net 

Other assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities: 

Banks and financial institutions deposits 

Customers' deposits 

Cash margins 

Other liabilities 

Shareholders' equity 

Total Liabilities 

Net Concentration on - Statement of Financial 

Position for the Current Year 

Off- Statement of Financial Position Contingent 

Liabilities for the Current Year 

December 31 2012 

Assets: 

Cash and balances at the central banks 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 

Direct credit facilities - net 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at amortized cost 

Other assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities: 

Banks and financial institutions deposits 

Customers' deposits 

Cash margins 

Other liabilities 

Shareholders' equity 

Total Liabilities 

Net Concentration on . Statcm.cnt of Financial 

Position for the Current Year 

Off- Statement of Financial Position Contingent 

Liabilities for the Current Year 

US Dollar Euro 

JD JD 

19,451,439 2,650,322 

25,539,446 3,736,78 I 

30,548,395 141,019 

1,935,709 

12,231,494 

5,757 

3,256,073 

92,968,313 6,528,122 

9,579,243 665,758 

76,156,244 5,394,806 

8,657,135 501,428 

1,468,296 

3,891,804 

99,752,722 6,561,992 

(6,784,409) (33,870) 

26,715,638 206,017 

18,007,410 10,229,700 

39,941,907 3,582,626 

33,110,990 139,851 

1,531,857 

4,134,063 

2,248,028 

98,974,255 13,952,177 

21,402,169 679,744 

83,809,671 10,451,068 

8,961,556 2,294,920 

(20,212,608) 

2,525,343 

96,486,13 I 13,425,732 

2,488,124 526,445 

26,672,628 205,685 
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Sterling Pound Shekel 

JD JD 

157,388 3,560,271 

1,336,874 4,195,563 

6 5,236,014 

1,856,503 

1;494,268 14,848,351 

7,226 1,612,714 

1,117,692 13,968,119 

658,001 

115,005 

1,124,918 16,353,839 

369,350 (1,505,488) 

6,131,102 245,625 

46,073 4,55 I ,805 

1,640,377 10,915,203 

23 5,119,671 

1,044,041 

1,686,473 21,630,720 

2,313 9,839,640 

1,651,017 13,696,329 

7 801,816 

49,371 

1,653,337 24,387,156 

33,136 (2,756,436) 

___ 6,l2l,231 245,230 

Others Total 

JD JD 

424,459 26,243,879 

877,911 35,686,575 

12,142,369 48,067,803 

1,935,709 

12,231,494 

5,757 

15,319 5,127,895 

13,460,058 129,299,112 

148,528 12,013,469 

1,637,630 98,274,491 

1,486,029 11,302,593 

1,714 1,585,015 

3,891,804 

3,273,901 127,067,372 

10,186,157 -------1n!_, 740 

1,477,096 34,775,478 

898,367 33,733,355 

2,234,538 58,314,651 

4,144,578 42,515,113 

1,531,857 

4,134,063 

640 3,292,709 

7,278,123 143,521,748 

554,568 32,478,434 

1,867,620 111,475,705 

905,061 12,963,360 

7,578 (20,155,659) 

2,525,343 

3,334,827 139,287,183 

3,943,296 �565 

1,444,766 ___14,§89,540 



37/ c. Liquidity Risk 
First: The following table illustrates the distribution of liabilities (undiscounted) on the basis of the remaining period to the contractual maturity at the date of the financial statements: 

Liquidity risk is defined as the loss to which the Bank might be exposed due to the unavailability of the necessary funds to finance its increased operations or obligations upon their 
maturity at the appropriate cost and time (considered as part of the Assets and Liabilities Management ALM). 

- The Bank adheres to the liquidity ratios set by the Central Bank of Jordan and other regulatory authorities under which the Bank's external branches operate. Liquidity is monitored on a daily
basis by the Bank.

- Liquidity is also monitored by the Assets and Liabilities Management Committee headed by the General Manager through periodic reports.

December 3 I , 20 I 3 
Liabilities: 
Banks and financial institutions deposits 
Customers' deposits 
Cash margins 
Borrowed funds 
Income tax provision 
Other provisions 
Other liabilities 

Total 
Total Assets based on expected maturity 

December 31. 2012 
Liabilities: 
Banks and financial institutions deposits 
Customers' deposits 
Cash margins 
Borrowed funds 
Other provisions 
Income tax provision 
Other liabilities 

Total 
Total Assets based on expected maturity 

Less than 
One Month 

JD 

69,620,777 
497,340,171 
22,834,959 

5,417,047 
595,212,954 
233,540,282 

38,850,452 
429,253,911 
28,424,591 
14,300,000 

4,238,068 
515,067,022 
159,074,898 

More than One More than More than 
Month up to 3 3 Months up 6 Months up More than One Year 

Months to 6 Months to One Year Up to 3 Years 
JD JD JD JD 

42,555,000 
81,905,111 76,691,719 58,894,696 
8,348,955 12,523,433 21,647,400 

2,331,748 
800,252 

7,174,512 1,666,118 48,590 
139,983,578 89,215,152 85,340,214 48,590 

68,700,490 __ �,105,612_ 117,236,334 . _ ___1Q7,280,769 

68,077,451 46,664,976 54,045,690 
5,168,107 7,752,161 15,945,169 

983,167 
1,381,748 

4,561,832 35,000 658,523 42,251 
77,807,390 55,833,885 71,632,549 42,251 
56,167,046 35,565,093 162,760,577 351,545,005 
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More than 
3 Years 

JD 

2,000,000 

2,000,000 

Non-Interest 
Bearing 

JD 

28,172,241 

957,110 
29,129,351 
73,117,017 

20,446,407 

41,558 
20,487,965 
79,230,411 

Total 
JD 

112,175,777 
743,003,938 
65,354,747 
2,000,000 
2,331,748 

800,252 
15,263,377 

940,929,839 
1,054,980,527 

38,850,452 
618,488,435 
57,290,028 
14,300,000 

983,167 
1,381,748 
9,577,232 

740,871,062 
844,343,030 



Second: Off - statement of financial position items: 

From One Year 

December 31, 2013 Up to One Year to 5 Years 

JD JD 

Guarantees 105,511,582 -

Letters of credit and 

acceptances 42,714,927 -

Operating lease 

contract liabilities 637,387 -

Unutilized credit 

facilities ceilings 51,590,769 -

200,454,665 -

From One Year 
December 31, 2012 Up to One Year 

JD 

Guarantees 88,224,730 
Letters of credit and 
acceptances 51,138,183 

Operating lease 

contract liabilities 604,694 

Unutilized credit 

facilities ceilings 30,135,915 

170,103,522 

38. Information on the Bank's Business Segments

a. Information on the key business segments :

to 5 Years 

JD 

-

-

-

-

Total 

JD 

105,511,582 

42,714,927 

637,387 

51,590,769 

200,454,665 

Total 

JD 

88,224,730 

51,138,183 

604,694 

30,135,915 

170,103,522 

The Bank is organized for managerial purposes, into four major sectors. Which
are measured according to rep011s that are used by the executive and the key

decision makers at the Bank, through its following major sectors:

Individual accounts: includes following up on individual customers deposits, and

granting them credit, credit cards and other services.

Corporate accounts: includes following up on deposits, credit facilities, and other

banking services related to customers from corporate.

Treasury: includes providing dealing services and managing the Bank's funds.

Others: this industry includes the activities which do not meet the definition of

Bank's business segments mentioned above.
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The following table represents information on the Bank's sectors according to activities: 

Gross income for the year 
Less: Provision for impairment loss in direct credit facilities 
Less: Impairment in financial assets 

Business Sector results 
Less: Expenditures not distributed over sectors 

Income (loss) before income tax 
Less: Income tax expense for the year 

Income (loss) for the Year 

Capital Expenditures 

Individuals 
JD 
5,233,114 

(1,522,833) 

3,710,281 
(3,053,588) 

656,693 

656,693 

Corporations 
JD 

19,925,336 
(8,842,637) 

11,082,699 
(11,626,686) 

(543,987) 

(54_3_,987) 

Treasury 
JD 

9,009,542 

Others 
JD 
1,398,222 

9,009,542 1,398,222 
(5,714,832) (656,382) 
3,294,710 741,840 

(950,000) 
3,294,710 (208,160) 

5,082_,_604 

Total 
For the Year Ended December 31, 

2013 2012 
JD JD 
35,566,214 31,551,724 

(10,365,470) (9,960,273) 
(226,880) 

25,200,744 21,364,571 
(21,051,488) (18,328,293) 

4,149,256 3,036,278 

(950,000) (973,400) 
3.199.256 2,062,878 

5.082.604 
-----'--

7,124,047 

Depreciation and Amortization 2.328 .383 2,328,383 -----'-- 1,795,178 

Total Assets 
Total Liabilities 

b. Information on the Geographical Allocation:

100,361,879 418,781,711 422,581,586 113,255,351 
448,925,293 356,483,904 118,505,481 17,015,161 

1,054,980,527 844,343,030 
940.929,839 740,871,062 

This sector represents the geographical distribution of the Bank's operations. The Bank performs its operations mainly in the Kingdom representing local operations.
Moreover, the Bank conducts international operations through its branches in Palestine.

The following is the Bank's revenue, assets, and capital expenditures according to geographic allocation: 

Inside Kin_g_dome Outside Kingdom 
For the Year Ended December 31, For the Year Ended December 31, 

Gross Income 
Capital Expenditures 

Total Assets 

2013 2012 
JD JD 

31,094,004 
4,636,958 

27,674,558 

6,118,828 

December 31, 
2013 2012 
JD JD 

980,918,417 731,210,458 
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2013 2012 
JD JD 

4,472,210 3,877,166 
445,646 1,005,219 

December 31, 
2013 2012 
JD JD 

74,062,110 113,132,572 

Total 
For the Year Ended December 31, 

2013 2012 
JD JD 
35,566,214 31,551,724 

5,082,604 7,124,047 

December 31, 
2013 2012 
JD JD 

1,054,980,527 844,343,030 



39 - Capital Management 
a. Description of Capital

Capital is categorized into various categories, such as; paid-up capital, economic
capital, and regulatory capital. Moreover, regulatory capital is defined, according
to the Banks Law, as the total value of the items determined by the Central Bank
for control purposes to meet the requirements of the capital adequacy ratio
required by the Central Bank of Jordan instructions. Furthermore, regulatory
capital consists of two parts: Primary Capital (tier 1) made up of paid-up capital,
declared reserves (including statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, share premium,
and treasury share premium), and retained earnings after excluding restricted
amounts and non-controlling interests net of loss for the period(if any), costs of
the acquisition of treasury shares, defen-ed provisions approved by the Central
Bank, restructuring balance and goodwill Support capital, as for the second part
(tier 2), additional paid in capital, it consists of the foreign cun-encies translation
differences, general banking risks reserve, instruments with debt-equity shared
characteristics, support debts and 45% of the financial assets valuation reserve, if
positive, and is deducted in full, if negative.

A third part of capital (tier 3) might be formed in case the capital adequacy ratio
goes below 12% due to factoring capital adequacy ratio into market risks.

Investments in the capitals of banks, insurance and other financial institutions are
deducted.

b. The requirements of the regulatory parties concerning capital and the manner in
which they are met.

Instructions of the Central Bank require that paid-up capital not to be less than
JD 100 million and shareholders' equity-to-assets ratio not to be less than 6%.
Moreover, the Central Bank instructions require that the ratio of regulatory
capital to assets weighted by risks and market risks ( capital adequacy ratio) be
not less than 12% which the Bank considers to meet. Furthe1more, the Bank
increased its issued and paid-up capital during the year 2012 to become JD/share
93,342,179 as of December 31, 2012, whereby the increasing paid-up capital
procedures were completed to become JD/share 100 million as of January 31,
2013, to commensurate with the Central bank of Jordan Requirements .

The Bank complies with Article (62) of the Banks Law which requires the Bank
to appropriate 10% of its annual net profits in the Kingdom and continue to do so
until the reserve equals the Bank's paid-up capital. This meets the requirements
of the statutory reserve prescribed by the Companies Law.

The Bank complies with A11icle ( 41) of the Banks Law which requires adherence
to the limits set by the Central Bank of Jordan relating to:

1. The percentage of risks relating to its assets and assets weighted by risks,
elements of capital, reserves, and contra accounts.

2. Ratio of total loans to regulatory capital the Bank is allowed to grant to one
person, his allies, or to related stakeholders.

3. Ratio of total loans granted to the major ten customers of the Bank to total
loans extended by the Bank.
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c. Method of Achieving Capital Management Goals.

The Bank considers the compatibility of the size of its capital with the size, 

nature, and complexity of the risk the Bank is exposed to in a manner that does 

not contradict the prevailing regulations and instructions. This is reflected in its 

strategic plans and annual budgets. To be more conservative in hedging against 

surrounding conditions and economic cycles, the Board of Directors decided, 

within the Bank's strategy, that capital adequacy ratio be not less than 12%. 

When entering into investments, the impact on capital adequacy ratio is 

considered. Moreover, capital and its adequacy are monitored periodically as 
capital adequacy ratio is monitored at the Group level and the individual Bank 

every quarter. Furthermore, capital adequacy is reviewed by internal audit, and 
capital ratios are monitored monthly. Such ratios are financial leverage, 

shareholders' equity to assets, shareholders' equity to customers' deposits, 

internal growth of capital, provisions, and free capital. This should achieve the 

appropriate financial leverage, and consequently, the targeted return on 
shareholders' equity not less than 20% as prescribed by the Bank's strategy. 

No dividends are paid to shareholders out of the regulatory capital if such 

payment leads to in adherence to the minimum capital requirement. The Bank 
concentrates on the internal growth of capital and can resort to public 
subscriptions to meet expansionary needs and future plans, or the requirements of 
the regulatory bodies according to specified studies. 
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Capital Adequacy 
Capital adequacy ratio is calculated according to the Central Bank of Jordan 

instructions based on Basel Committee resolutions. The following is the capital 
adequacy ratio compared with the previous year: 

Core capital items: 
Authorized and paid-up capital 
Statutory reserve 
Cyclicality Reserve 
Retained earnings 

Less: 

Bank's Capital restructuring balance 

Investments in banks capital and other financial 
institutions 

Intangible assets - net 
Seized properties whose ownership period is more than 
four years 
Adjustments according to the Central Bank of Jordan 
requirements 

Total Core Capital 

Authorized and paid-up capital items: 

Finandal assets valuation reserve 

General banking risks reserve 
Investments in banks capital and other financial 
institutions 

Total supplementary capital 

Total Core and· Regulatory Capital 

Total Regulatory Capital 

Total assets weighted by risks 

Ratio of regulatory capital 

Core capital ratio 
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December 31, 

2013 
JD 

I 00,000,000 
8,449,542 

897,196 
2,329,753 

(5,177,555) 

(3,103,584) 

(722,991) 

(3,258,441) 

(2,159,792) 

97,254,128 

(3,851,899) 

5,140,276 

(1,288,377) 

97,254,128 

97,254,128 

786,325,941 

12/37% 

12/37% 

2012 
JD 

93,342,179 
8,034,616 

748,884 
553,648 

(5,177,555) 

(3,958,545) 

(1,360,051) 

(2,700,326) 

(7,416,147) 

82,066,703 

(4,491,843) 

4,198,663 

293,180 

82,066,703 

82,066,703 

672,368,943 

12/21 % 

12/21 % 



40. Analysis of Maturities Assets and Liabilities

The following table illustrates the analysis of assets and liabilities according to the expected period of their 

recoverability or settlement: 

December 31. 2013 

ASSETS 

Cash and balances at central banks 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 

Direct credit facilities -net 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at amortized cost-net 

Property and equipment - net 

Intangible assets · net 

Other assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Banks and financial institutions deposits 

Customers deposits 

Cash margins 

Borrowed funds 

Other provisions 

Provision for income tax 

Other liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

December 31. 2012 

ASSETS 

Cash and balances at central banks 

Balances at banks and financial institutions 

Direct credit facilities - net 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets at amortized cost -net 

Property and equipment - net 

Intangible assets • net 

Other assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Bank_s and financial institutions deposits 

Customers deposits 

Cash margins 

Borrowed funds 

Other provisions 

Provision for income tax 

Other liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
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Up to 

One Year 

JD 

123,785,204 

61,300,837 

202, I 87,878 

5,440,483 

70,383,454 

More than 

One Year 

JD 

315,099,235 

Total 

JD 

123,785,204 

61,300,837 

517,287,113 

5,440,483 

9,638,731 9,638,731 

186,939,395 257,322,849 

24,367,275 24,367,275 

722,991 722,991 

12,109,469 43,005,575 55,115,044 

475,207,325 579,773,202 1,054,980,527 

112,175,777 112,175,777 

714,831,697 28,172,241 743,003,938 

65,354,747 65,354,747 

2,000,000 2,000,000 

800,252 800,252 

2,331,748 2,331,748 

15,214,787 48,590 15,263,377 

910,709,008 30,220,831 940,929,839 

(435,501,683) 549,552,371 114,050,688 

I 03,655,689 I 03,655,689 

68,368,860 68,368,860 

177,104,077 263,420, I 03 440,524,180 

3,111,976 3,111,976 

7,982,764 7,982,764 

45,256,475 104,042,083 149,298,558 

14,300,000 14,300,000 

20,975,994 20,975,994 

1,360,05 I 1,360,051 

4,902,513 29,862,445 34,764,958 

413,587,614 430,755,416 844,343,030 

38,850,452 38,850,452 

598,042,028 20,446,407 6 I 8,488,435 

57,290,028 57,290,028 

14,300,000 14,300,000 

983,167 983,167 

1,381,748 1,381,748 

9,493,423 83,809 9,577,232 

720,340,846 20,530,216 740,871,062 

(306,753,232) 410,225,200 103,471,968 



41.F:tir Vnlue Hitrnrchy 

A. The fair ,•aluc or financial :;lSSets and financial liabili1ies or the Onnk specified at fair value on an ongoing basis: 

Some financial asse1s and Liabilities of the bank nrc e,•nluated at fair ,-alue at the end of each fiscal period, 1he follo\\ing !able shows the information about how 10 determine the fair \'alue of these 
liminc,al assets :ind liabilities(cvaluation me1hods Md inputs used). 

Fin:incial Assets/Financ,:11 Liabilities 

fim111cinl Assets :u Fnir Vnlue 

Financial Asseu at Fnir Value Through Income Statement 

Shares tha1 h:l\'e :,vailable market price 

Totnl 

Financi:1I Assets nl Fair Value through Comprehensi,·c Income 

Shares 1h1n have :wailable market price 

Shares lhat doesn't ha,·e a,·ailable market price 

Tol:11 

Tol:11 Fi11m1ci1ll Asset$ �t Fnh· Vnlue 

·n.ere ,,ere no transrcrs belween level I .Uld le,el 2 during 1he year 2013 

Fair Value The Le,·el of 

December 31. 2013 Fnir Value 

JD 

5 440.483 Level One 

5�483 

7,476,720 Le\'el One 

2,162,011 Le,·elTwo 

91638,JJI 

IS.079,214 

8-Thc f11lr ,·alui: of Qnnnclal aot,·jl Mnd lln111nd11I U,1l1ili1ic1 o( 1hr bank (noo-Jpr-t"iftc fill[ ,·plue on MQ ongoing h11111): 

E,·aluntion Method Important Intangible Relation between !he f:ur ,•alue 

and lneuts used Inputs and the im�ortan1 intangible ineuts 

Suued Rates in 
linancial markets Doesn't Appl>• Docsn\Apply 

Stated Rates in 
linnncial marke1s Doesn't Apply Doesn't Apply 

Financial Stacements 
issued by Companies Doesn't Apply Doesn\Apply 

Except what is se1 out in the rnble below. we belie\'C 1ha1 the carl)'ing amount of l'inancial nssets and liabilities shown in the finnncial statements of the bank appro;,.;imate 1heir fair ,•t:ilue. 

because the bank manngements believes 1hat the carl)•ing value of 1he items is equivalent 10 the fair ,·i:alue. And lhis is due to ei1her maturity or short-term inlerest mies that hiwe been repriced during the year 

Financial Assels or 11011-spcdflrd Fnir Value 

Cash a1 Central Banks 

Cash al Bnnl.s and Financial lns1i1ut1ons 

Deposi1s at Banks and Financial lns1itutions 

Loans nnd Bills and others 

Financial Asse1s at Amortized Cosl 

To1a1 Fiuancial Asst1s or 0011-11,ecified Fair Value 

Financial Lfabililics of non-specified Fnir Value 

Oeposi ls 01 Banks mid Fin:uicial lnstitu1ions 

Cus1omer's Deposits 

Cash Margin 

CllSh Insurance 

Tomi Financial Liabilities of non-specified Fair Value 

December 31. 2013 

Book ,•alue Fair Value 

JD JD 

123. 785,204 12J,785,2Q.I 

61.300,837 61,300,837 

517,278,113 517,278,113 

257,322,849 257,322,849 

54,490,460 60,825 188 

l,014�1'77,463 __ l,020.512,191 

112,175,777 112,175,777 

74J,003,9J8 743,003,938 

65,354,747 65,354,747 

2 000.000 2,000 000 

922,534,462 �34,46_� 

11ie Level of 

Fair Value 

JD 

Le,·el Two 

Le,•el Two 

Le,•el Two 

Le,·el One&Two 

Le\'el Two 

Le,·cl Two 

Le,·clTwo 

Level Two 

Tbe fair ,·:due for the li11anc1al assets and habili1ies for the le,·cl 2 :v,d le,·el 3 were determined in accordance to ru, :,,greed pricing models, which reOects the credit risk or 1he p:inies th:11 arc dealing with 11. 
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42. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Off - Statement of Financial Position)

a. Credit commitments and contingencies:

Letters of credit 

Letters of acceptances 

Letters of guarantee : 

Payments 

Performance bonds 

Others 

Unutilized credit facilities ceilings 

Total 

December 31, 

2013 

JD 

39,158,054 

3,556,873 

29,470,229 

30,266,352 

45,775,001 

51,590,769 

199,817,278 

2012 

JD 

47,393,133 

3,745,050 

20,429,234 

31,748,118 

36,047,378 

30,135,915 

169,498,828 

b. Operating leases amounted to JD 637,387 as of December 31, 2013 (JD 604,694

as of December 31, 2012).
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43. Lawsuits against the Bank
The Bank is a defendant in lawsuits amounting to JD 1,764,669 as of 
December 31, 2013 (JD 2,333,065 as of December 31, 2012). In the 
opinion of the Bank's management and legal advisor, no liabilities 
shall arise against the Bank exceeding the existing booked provision 
of JD 282,832 as of December 31, 2013 (JD 402,508 as of December 
31, 2012). 

44. Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards OFRSs) 

44.a.New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the
financial statements: 

The following new and revised IFRSs have been adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements for which they did not have 
any material impact on the amounts and disclosures of the financial 
statements; however, they may affect the accounting for future 
transactions and arrangements. 

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. 

IFRS 12 Disclosure of 
Interests in Other Entities. 

IFRS 13 Fair Value 
Measurement 

Requires a parent to present 
consolidated financial statements as 
those of a single economic entity, 
replacing the requirements previously 
contained in IAS 27 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements and 
SIC-12 Consolidation - Special 
Purpose Entities. 
Replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint

Ventures. Requires a party to a joint 
arrangement to determine the type of 
joint arrangement in which it is 
involved by assessing its rights and 
obligations and then account for those 
rights and obligations in accordance 
with that type of joint arrangement. 

Requires the extensive disclosure of 
information that enables users of 
financial statements to evaluate the 
nature of, and risks associated with, 
interests in other entities and the effects 
of those interests on its financial 
position, financial performance and cash 
flows. 

Replaces the guidance on fair value 
measurement in existing IFRS 
accounting literature with a single 
standard. 
The IFRS defines fair value, provides 
guidance on how to determine fair value 
and requires disclosures about fair value 
measurements. 
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IAS 27 Separate Financial 

Statements (2011) 

IAS 28 Investments in 

Associates and Joint 

Ventures (2011) 

Amendments to IFRS 7 
Disclosures - Offsetting

Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities 

Annual Improvements IFRSs 

2009-2011 Cycle 

Amendments to Governmental 

loans 

Amended version of IAS 27 which now 
only deals with the requirements for 
separate financial statements, which 
have been carried over largely 
unchanged from IAS 27 Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements. 
Requirements for consolidated financial 
statements are now contained in IFRS 
10 Consolidated Financial Statements. 
This Standard supersedes IAS 28 
Investments in Associates and prescribes 
the accounting for investments in 
associates and sets out the requirements 
for the application of the equity method 
when accounting for investments in 
associates and joint ventures. 
The Standard defines 'significant 
influence' and provides guidance on 
how the equity method of accounting is 
to be applied (including exemptions 
from applying the equity method in 
some cases). It also prescribes how 
investments in associates and joint 
ventures should be tested for 
impairment. 
Amends the disclosure requirements in 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures to require information about 
all recognized financial instruments that 
are set off in accordance with paragraph 

42 of IAS 32 Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. 

IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32, 
IAS 34. 

IFRS 1. 
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Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 
11 and IFRS 12 Consolidated 
Financial 
Statements, Joint 

Arrangements and Disclosure 
of Inte,rests in Other Entities: 

Provide additional transition relief in by 
limiting the requirement to provide 
adjusted comparative information to 
only the preceding comparative period. 

Transition Guidance 

44.b. New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet effective
The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued but are not 

effective yet: 

The Bank has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that 
are available for early application but are not effective yet: 

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial 
Statements Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Liabilities. 

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 
and IAS 27 Investment Entities. 

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable 
Amount Disclosures for Non­
Financial Assets. 

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of 

Derivatives and Continuation of 
Hedge Accounting. 

IFRIC 21 Levies 

Amendments to IFRS (9): Financial 
Instruments and IFRS (7) : Financial 
Instruments/ Disclosures - Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities 

Effective for Annual Periods 
Beginning On or After 
1 January 2014. 

1 January 2014. 

1 January 2014. 

1 January 2014. 

1 January 2014. 

1 January 2017 

Management anticipates that each of the above standards and 
interpretations will be adopted in the financial statements by its date 
mentioned above without having any material impact on the Bank's 
financial statements. 
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